
 

 

 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

AGENDA 
 

 FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2024 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028 
4:00 P.M. PHONE:  (760) 728-1125 

 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD AT THE ABOVE DATE, TIME, AND LOCATION AND MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC MAY ATTEND IN PERSON AT THE DISTRICT OFFICE LOCATED AT 990 E. MISSION RD., 
FALLBROOK, CA 92028.  FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF  MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO DO NOT WISH TO 

ATTEND IN PERSON, FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT PROVIDES A MEANS TO OBSERVE AND 
PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENTS AT THE MEETING VIA WEB CONFERENCE USING THE BELOW CALL-IN AND 
WEBLINK INFORMATION. PLEASE NOTE THAT IN THE EVENT OF TECHNICAL ISSUES THAT DISRUPT THE 

ABILITY OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO VIEW THE MEETING OR PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENTS 
THROUGH THE WEB CONFERENCE OPTION, THE MEETING WILL CONTINUE. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

 https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09 
MEETING ID:  820 0317 2211 
AUDIO PASSCODE:  363170 

 
Dial by your location 

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston); +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver); +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma);  
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb7TPD4AEt  

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Members of the public may submit public comments and comments on agenda items in one of 

the following ways: 
 
SUBMIT COMMENTS BEFORE THE MEETING:  

 By emailing to our Board Secretary at leckert@fpud.com  

 By mailing to the District Offices at 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook, CA 92028 

 By depositing them in the District’s Payment Drop Box located at 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook, CA 92028  
 

All comments submitted before the meeting by whatever means must be received at least 1 hour in advance of the 
meeting. All comments will be read to the Board during the appropriate portion of the meeting. Please keep any written 
comments to 3 minutes.   
 
REMOTELY MAKE COMMENTS DURING THE MEETING: The Board President will inquire prior to Board discussion 

if there are any comments from the public on each item. 

 Via Zoom Webinar go to the “Participants List,” hover over your name and click on “raise hand.” This will notify the  
 moderator that you wish to speak during oral communication or during a specific item on the agenda.  

 Via phone, you can raise your hand by pressing *9 to notify the moderator that you wish to speak during the current  
 item. 
 
MAKE IN-PERSON COMMENTS DURING THE MEETING: The Board President will inquire prior to Board discussion 

if there are any comments from the public on each item, at which time members of the public attending in person may 
make comments. 
 
THESE PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES SUPERSEDE THE DISTRICT’S STANDARD PUBLIC COMMENT 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES TO THE CONTRARY.  
 

If you have a disability and need an accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call the Secretary 
at (760) 999-2704 for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.   

 
 
 

001

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb7TPD4AEt
mailto:leckert@fpud.com


Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Page 2 October 28, 2024 

 

 

 

I. PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b) 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.  The Board President may 
limit comments to three (3) minutes. 
 

A. NEW EMPLOYEE ANNOUNCEMENT 
1. Juan Basave, Utility Worker I 
2. Brandon Salgado, Utility Worker I  
3. Jim Ollerton, Information Technology Manager 

 
II. CONSENT CALENDAR ---------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEM B) 

All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single 
motion. Items shall be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the 
Board of Directors, or the public, requests removal prior to a vote on a motion to 
approve the items. Such items shall be considered separately for action by the 
Board.  
 
B. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. September 23, 2024 Regular Meeting  
 
Recommendation:  The Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.  

 
III. INFORMATION --------------------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEM C) 
 

C. PIPELINE AND VALVE REPLACEMENT CONTRACT PRE-
QUALIFICATION PROGRAM 

 
Presented by:  Aaron Cook, Engineering Manager 

 
IV. ACTION / DISCUSSION CALENDAR ---------------------------------------(ITEMS D–K) 
  

D. CONSIDER RECOMMENDATIONS BY THE COMMUNITY BENEFIT 
PROGRAM COMMITTEE 

 

002



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Page 3 October 28, 2024 

 

 

 

Recommendation: That the Board approve the Projects as recommended by 
the Committee and direct the Committee to finalize contract terms for each 
of these Projects using the Contract template and authorize the General 
Manager to execute these contracts.      
 
E. CONSIDER REQUEST TO RESCHEDULE THE DECEMBER 2, 2024 

COMBINED NOVEMBER / DECEMBER REGULAR BOARD MEETING TO 
DECEMBER 9, 2024 

 
Recommendation: That the Board authorize rescheduling the combined 
November/December Regular Board Meeting to December 9, 2024. 

 
F. CONSIDER AWARD OF RATTLESNAKE TANK SITE IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT 
 

Recommendation:  That the Board award the Rattlesnake Tank Site Improvement 
Project to the lowest responsible bidder, NMN Construction for $818,000. 
 
G. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 5083, AMENDING 

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ARTICLE 5, DISTRICT PROCUREMENT 
PROCEDURES 

 
Recommendation:  That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5083 amending 
Administrative Code Article 5, District Procurement Procedures 
 
H. CONSIDER REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY SEWER SERVICE 

AGREEMENT FOR APN 120-010-64 
 

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5084 authorizing a 
Temporary Sewer Service Agreement between the Fallbrook Public Utility District 
and Calhoun Family Living Trust.  
 
I. CONSIDER LAKE SKINNER HYDROLOGY STUDY 

 
Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to sign an 
agreement with Stetson Engineers not to exceed $84,750 to perform the hydrology 
study and conceptual runoff model for Lake Skinner to study the loss of runoff over 
the past 12 years. Metropolitan Water District will reimburse the District for 50% of 
the cost.  
 
J. CONSIDER LETTER OF SUPPORT TO SAN DIEGO COUNTY BOARD 

OF SUPERVISORS TO APPOINT DON MCDOUGAL, OR ANOTHER 
SUBDISTRICT 4 REGISTERED VOTER/RESIDENT, TO THE FPUD 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUBDISTRICT 4 

 
Recommendation: That the Board provide direction to staff regarding submittal 
of a letter to the San Diego County Board of Supervisors and Supervisor Desmond 
supporting its appointment of Don McDougal, or another a Subdistrict 4 registered 
voter/resident, to the FPUD Board of Directors, Subdistrict 4. 

003



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Page 4 October 28, 2024 

 

 

 

K. CONSIDER REQUEST FOR BOARD APPROVAL FOR COMPLETION OF 
ACQUISITION OF THE FALLBROOK 3 FLOW CONTROL FACILITY 
FROM THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the 
attached Bill of Sale for acquisition of the Fallbrook 3 Flow Control Facility for 
$112,850 from the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA), which will 
complete the transfer of all assets as part of the detachment process. 

 

IV. ORAL/WRITTEN REPORTS----------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS 1–7)  
 

1. General Counsel 
2. General Manager 

a. MWD/EMWD Update 
b. Engineering and Operations Report 
c. Federal Funding Update 

3. Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer 
a. Financial Summary Report 
b. Treasurer’s Report 
c. Budget Status Report 
d. Warrant List 

4. Public Information Officer 
5. Notice of Approval of Per Diem for Meetings Attended 
6. Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended 
7. Miscellaneous 

 
VI. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 
 

* * * * * 
DECLARATION OF POSTING 

 

 I, Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary of the Fallbrook Public Utility 
District, do hereby declare that I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda in the glass case 
at the entrance of the District Office located at 990 East Mission Road, Fallbrook, 
California, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting in accordance with Government Code § 
54954.2(a).   
 
 I, Lauren Eckert, further declare under penalty of perjury and under the laws of the 
State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.   
 

 
October 23, 2024  /s/ Lauren Eckert  
Dated / Fallbrook, CA  Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 

004



A

This page intentionally left blank. 

005



B 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 

DATE: October 28, 2024 

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board approve the minutes of the following meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the Fallbrook Public Utility District: 
 
1. September 23, 2024 Regular Meeting 
 

 

 

 

 

  

006



 

 
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
MINUTES 

 
 FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 23, 2024 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028 
4:00 P.M. PHONE:  (760) 728-1125 

 
I. PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

 
President DeMeo called the September Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

of the Fallbrook Public Utility District to order at 4:00 p.m.  
 

A quorum was established, and attendance was as follows:   
 
Board of Directors 
 
Present: Jennifer DeMeo, Member/President 
 Don McDougal, Member/Vice President  
 Dave Baxter, Member 
 Ken Endter, Member 
 Charley Wolk, Member 
   
Absent: None 
  
General Counsel/District Staff 
 
Present: Jack Bebee, General Manager 
 Paula de Sousa, General Counsel 
 Dave Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
 Jodi Brown, Management Analyst 
 Devin Casteel, System Operations Supervisor 
 Isabel Casteran, Safety & Risk Officer 
 Aaron Cook, Engineering Manager 
 Aaron Cox, Maintenance Technician II 
 Noelle Denke, Public Information Officer 
 Josh Hargrove, Senior Maintenance Technician 
 Peter Marshall, Collections Supervisor 
 Carl Quiram, Operations Manager 
 Steve Stone, Field Services Manager 
 Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
 

007



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 2 September 23, 2024 

 
Also present were others, including, but not limited to:  Jacqueline Howells and Mark 
Mervich 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
  President DeMeo led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION: Director McDougal moved to approve the agenda; Director Endter 
seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 
  AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal and Wolk 
  NOES: None 
  ABSTAIN: None 
  ABSENT: None  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.  The Board President may 
limit comments to three (3) minutes. 
 
 There were no public comments on non-agenda items. 
 
 There were no public comments on agenda items A – B.  
 

A. EMPLOYEE PROMOTIONS 
1. Peter Marshall, Collections Supervisor 
2. Aaron Cox, Maintenance Technician II 

 
The Board recognized Peter Marshall for his promotion to Collections 

Supervisor and Aaron Cox for his promotion to Maintenance Technician II.  
 

B. YEARS OF SERVICE 
1. Josh Hargrove – 10 years 

 
The Board recognized Josh Hargrove for his 10 years of service to the 

District.  
 
II. CONSENT CALENDAR ---------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS C–E) 

All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single 
motion.  Items shall be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the 
Board of Directors, or the public, requests removal prior to a vote on a motion to 
approve the items. Such items shall be considered separately for action by the 
Board.  

008



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 3 September 23, 2024 

 
C. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. August 26, 2024 Regular Meeting 
 

Recommendation: The Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.  
 
D. CONSIDER ADVANCE APPROVAL TO ATTEND MEETINGS 
 
Recommendation: That the Board authorize and approve, in advance, Directors' 
attendance to the ACWA Region 10 event addressing water quality challenges: 
present and future on October 15, 2024 at Yorba Linda Water District in Placentia, 
CA.  

 
E. CONSIDER NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR PROJECT 3197, SEWER 

MAIN RELINING 
 
Recommendation: That the Board authorize staff to file the attached Notice of 
Completion with the San Diego County Recorder. 
 
 There were no public comments on Consent Calendar items.  
 
MOTION: Director Baxter moved to approve the Consent Calendar as 

presented; Director McDougal seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 
 

  AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
  NOES: None 
  ABSTAIN: None 
  ABSENT: None 

 
III. INFORMATION --------------------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEM F) 
 
 F. UPDATE ON SEPTEMBER 13TH INCIDENT AT THE UV PLANT AT RED 

MOUNTAIN RESERVOIR 
 
 Presented by:     Carl Quiram, Operations Manager 
 

 There were no public comments on agenda item F.  
 
 Operations Manager Quiram provided an update on the September 13, 
2024 incident at the UV plant at Red Mountain Reservoir that resulted in a boil 
order notice. He reported there was an equipment failure with the UPS, which 
resulted in a power failure at the plant. Operations Manager Quiram explained we 
are still working on diagnosing exactly what happened with the equipment as well 
as installing a secondary valve.  
 
 Director Baxter asked how staff noticed there was a problem. Operations 
Manager Quiram explained when it happened, it froze the SCADA system. When 

009



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 4 September 23, 2024 

 
the alarm went off and staff looked at their tablets, everything looked fine. One of 
the Operators went in anyway and found there was no power. Director Baxter 
asked if there was something that could be done in the SCADA system in the event 
of a failure. Operations Manager Quiram responded that we are weighing our 
options.  
 
 Director Wolk was concerned that all precautions were taken, and this still 
happened. He asked if there was something that could be added for the Operators 
to be able to manually check it. Operations Manager Quiram stated a smaller 
separate UPS would be able to fix that problem.  
 
 Director Baxter asked if physical cameras would help with this. Operations 
Manager Quiram stated this happened during the night when it was completely 
dark, so staff would not have been able to see much on camera.  
 
 General Manager Bebee stated once a diagnosis is made, the Board will be 
notified of what happened.  

 
IV. ACTION / DISCUSSION CALENDAR -------------------------------------------- (ITEM G) 
 

G. CONSIDER AWARD OF KAUFMAN PRESSURE STATION 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
Recommendation: That the Board award the Kaufman Pressure Station 
Replacement Project to the lowest responsible bidder, PK Mechanical for 
$570,000. 
 

There were no public comments on agenda item G.  
 
Director Endter reported this item went through the Engineering and 

Operations Committee.  
 

MOTION: Director Endter moved to award the Kaufman Pressure Station 
Replacement Project to the lowest responsible bidder, PK 
Mechanical for $570,000; Director McDougal seconded.  Motion 
carried; VOTE: 

 
  AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
  NOES: None 
  ABSTAIN: None 
  ABSENT: None 

 
V. ORAL/WRITTEN REPORTS----------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS 1–7)  
 

1. General Counsel 
2. General Manager 

a. MWD/EMWD Update 
b. Engineering and Operations Report 

010



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes Page 5 September 23, 2024 

 
c. Federal Funding Update 

3. Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer 
a. Financial Summary Report 
b. Treasurer’s Report 
c. Budget Status Report 
d. Warrant List 

 AGM/CFO Shank reported the District received a GFOA award for the 
budget. This award is focused on enhancing budgets.  

4. Public Information Officer 

 President DeMeo commended PIO Denke on the recent press releases.  
5. Notice of Approval of Per Diem for Meetings Attended 
6. Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended 

 President DeMeo encouraged Directors to attend the ACWA Region 10 
event on October 15th.  

7. Miscellaneous 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the September Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District was adjourned at 4:19 p.m. 
 
 
   
 President, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Secretary, Board of Directors 

011



C 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Engineering & Operations Committee 

DATE: October 28, 2024 

SUBJECT: Pipeline & Valve Replacement – Contractor Prequalification Program 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Description 
 
Introduction of the District’s new pipeline and valve replacement contractor 
prequalification program. 
 
Purpose 
 
Pipeline and valve replacement is a primary component of the District’s capital 
improvement program. In order to meet long term pipeline replacement goals, the 
District has been increasing the rate of pipeline replacement efforts. Larger pipeline 
projects are installed by contractors. To ensure quality work, staff initiated a contractor 
prequalification program. Prequalification packages from interested contractors were 
due on September 11, 2024. Twelve contractors submitted completed questionnaires, 
and after review, all twelve met the requirements for pre-qualification. The approved 
contractors are: 
 

Filanc CCL Contracting, Inc.  

EJ Meyer Co PK Mechanical Systems, Inc 

SRK Engineering Inc. Gentry General Engineering, Inc. 

TK Construction GCI Construction, Inc. 

Bali Construction, Inc. Southland Paving, Inc. 

Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, 
Inc. 

J.W. Fowler Co. 

 
Over the next year, notices inviting bids for planned pipeline and valve replacement 
projects will be issued to this list of pre-qualified contractors. Each year, the pre-
qualification process will be re-opened to allow for additional contractors to be 
evaluated and added to the list.   
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
No budgetary impact.   
 
Recommended Action 
 
No recommended action – for information only.  

012



D 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Jack Bebee, General Manager 

DATE: October 28, 2024 

SUBJECT: Board Consideration of Recommendations by the Community Benefit 
Program Committee  

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 
 
The Community Benefit Program recommends, promotes, coordinates projects, 
oversees funding and ensures timely completion of projects proposed by nonprofit and 
qualified organizations related to parks, recreation facilities, and roads and street 
lighting within FPUD’s service area. The program intends to benefit Fallbrook residents 
by using unrestricted public property tax revenue received by FPUD and allocated to 
the Community Benefit Program. The Committee Benefit Program is administered by 
the Board-appointed Community Benefit Program Committee (Committee), which is 
made of volunteers that are District ratepayers. The Community Benefit Program 
Committee has completed their review and developed recommendations for approval of 
projects for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 as part of the Community Benefit Program. Each 
Fiscal Year, the District allocates $546,000 in property tax revenue to fund the Program. 
In accordance with the District’s Administrative Code, Board approval is required to 
complete the funding process. 
 
Description 
 
The Committee held numerous public workshops and public meetings to inform the 
public about the funding opportunity available under the Community Benefit Program 
(Program). The Committee received applications from 12 organizations (Attachment A), 
which included a total of 20 proposed projects. On October 22, 2024, the Committee 
held a public meeting to finalize the scoring and make recommendations for funding. 
The Committee completed the process, formally recommending the Board approve 16 
projects for a total amount of $821,166 (Attachment B).  
 
Recommended Project Brief Description  Recommended Amount 

Fallbrook Center for the Arts: 
Mural Restoration 

Restoration of murals in three public 
places 

$11,760 

Fallbrook Community Youth 
Baseball: Asphalt 

Full replacement of asphalt $281,781 

Fallbrook Community Youth 
Baseball: Bathroom Renovations 

Bathroom renovation to be able to 
accommodate large number of visitors 
during Spring and Fall baseball seasons 

$12,000 

Fallbrook Land Conservancy: 
Save our Forest Treescape & 
Flower Pot 

Treescape maintenance for downtown 
Fallbrook, the Palomares House Park and 
Sculpture Garden and both sides of 1.1 
miles of South Mission Road 

$11,150 

Fallbrook Land Conservancy: 
Los Jilgueros 

Security, maintenance and improvements 
to the native habit for Los Jilgueros 
Preserve 

$56,700 

Fallbrook Regional Health Sidewalk installation along main $28,950 

013



District: Sidewalks and 2 ADA 
ramps 

multipurpose rooms in building A, 
including ADA accessible ramp adjacent 
to the education building 

Fallbrook Sports Association: 
Routine Maintenance 

Normal routine maintenance of Ingold 
Sports Park – fixed maintenance 
expenses 

$73,800 

Fallbrook Trails Council: Weed 
Abatement 

Weed abatement and clearing trail 
pathways to make walkable spaces 

$9,500 

Fallbrook Trails Council: Trail 
Excavation & Repairs 

Repair areas that sustained damage after 
rains/storms 

$30,000 

Fallbrook Trails Council: 
Maintenance & Security 

Maintenance/security service during peak 
summer season 

$25,000 

Fallbrook Village Association: 
Parks Preservation & 
Conservation Continuation 

Continuing park maintenance and upkeep 
of Pico Promenade, Jackie Heyneman 
Park, Vince Ross Village Square and 
Railroad Heritage Park 

$16,150 

Fallbrook Village Association: 
Parks Preservation-impact of 
Unhoused & Conservation 

Preservation of Pico Promenade, Jackie 
Heyneman Park, Vince Ross Village 
Square and Railroad Heritage Park 
including repairing damage, clearing 
encampments and removing waste and 
abandoned items 

$18,400 

Fallbrook Village Association: 
Railroad Heritage Park  

Finishing the interior of the ticket booth 
and purchase/installation of benches, 
trash cans, additional safety lighting, 
speakers, and signage 

$24,975 

Mission Resource Conservation 
District: Mission Medians 

Continued maintenance of medians on 
Mission Road 

$25,000 

Wildlands Conservancy: Santa 
Margarita River Trail Parking Lot 
Biofiltration 

Construction of biofiltration basin to treat 
the stormwater for the parking lot and 
bring the existing parking lot into 
compliance 

$173,000 

Wildlands Conservancy: Santa 
Margarita River Trail Head 
Improvement 

Upgrading signage at Sandia Creek 
Trailhead and Willow Glen Trailhead and 
installation of fencing and gate along with 
an informational signage kiosk at the 
Rock Mountain Trailhead 

$23,000 

TOTAL  821,166 

 
Staff and District’s legal counsel worked with the Committee to develop a contract 
template to be completed and executed with the entities approved for funding. A copy 
of the agreement is included in Attachment C. 
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
The District has allocated property tax revenues into the Program. At the beginning of 
each fiscal year, $546,000 is transferred into the Program. The current balance in the 
Program is $1,369,896.32. If the Board approves the recommended projects, the 
remaining balance will be $548,730.32. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board approve the Projects as recommended by the Committee and direct the 
Committee to finalize contract terms for each of these Projects using the Contract 
template and authorize the General Manager to execute these contracts.      

014



Attachment A 

015



Applications Received 

1. AnimalKind Corporation 
2. Fallbrook/Bonsall Rally for Children 
3. Fallbrook Center for the Arts, Inc. 
4. Fallbrook Community Youth Baseball 
5. Fallbrook Land Conservancy 
6. Fallbrook Regional Healthcare District 
7. Fallbrook Riders, Inc. 
8. Fallbrook Sports Association 
9. Fallbrook Trails Council 
10. Fallbrook Village Association 
11. Mission Resource Conservation District 
12. Wildlands Conservancy 

 

016



Attachment B

017



James Mendelson 
Community Benefit Program Committee Chair 
990 E. Mission Road 
Fallbrook, CA 92028 
 
October 22, 2024 
 
Jennifer DeMeo 
President Fallbrook Public Utility District Board of Directors 
c/o Jack BeBee, Fallbrook Public Utility District General Manager 
990 E. Mission Road 
Fallbrook, CA 92028 
 
Re:  Community Benefit Program Committee Recommendations 
 
Dear Fallbrook Public Utility District Board Members: 
 
The Community Benefit Program Committee has solicitated, received and reviewed applications 
for funding from non-profit organizations and a government agency. On October 22, 2024, during 
a regularly scheduled public meeting, the Committee made the following decisions. Please 
consider this letter a request for the Fallbrook Public Utility District Board to include this matter in 
its October 28, 2024 Agenda and to approve the recommended funding: 
 

Organization Project  Funding 

Fallbrook Center for the Arts Mural Restoration 11,760 

Fallbrook Community Youth 
Baseball  

Asphalt 281,781 

Fallbrook Community Youth 
Baseball 

Bathroom Renovations 12,000 

Fallbrook Land Conservancy Save our Forest Treescape & 
Flower Pot 

11,150 

Fallbrook Land Conservancy  Los Jilgeros 56,700 

Fallbrook Regional Health 
District 

Sidewalks and 2 ADA ramps 28,950 

Fallbrook Sports Association Routine Maintenance 73,800 

Fallbrook Trails Council Weed Abatement 9,500 

Fallbrook Trails Council  Trail Excavation & Repairs 30,000 

Fallbrook Trails Council Maintenance & Security 25,000 

Fallbrook Village Association  Parks Preservation & 
Conservation Continuation 

16,150 

Fallbrook Village Association  Parks Preservation-impact of 
Unhoused & Conservation 

18,400 

Fallbrook Village Association:   Railroad Heritage Park 24,975 

Mission Resource 
Conservation District 

Mission Medians 25,000 

Wildlands Conservancy Santa Margarita River Trail 
Parking Lot Biofiltration 

173,000 

Wildlands Conservancy Santa Margarita River Trail 
Head Improvement 

23,000 

TOTAL  821,166 

018



 
Fallbrook Public Utility District Board Members 
Re:  Community Benefit Program Committee Recommendations for Funding 
October 22, 2024 
Page Two 
 
 
 
I will attend the Fallbrook Public Utility District’s October 28, 2024 Directors Board Meeting to 
present these recommendations and to answer any questions along with Committee Secretary 
Anna M. Marchand. However, please feel welcome to contact me prior to the meeting for any 
questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
James Mendelson, Chair 

019



Attachment C

020



FPUD CBP 2024 Funding Agreement  

(Revised 8.12.2024 (Prior: 60065.00500\41078795.1) 

1 

 

Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Community Benefit Program Funding Agreement 

This Community Benefit Program Grant Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of 

[Insert Date] by and between the Fallbrook Public Utility District (“District”) and [Insert Community 

Organization Name](“Recipient”). 

 

1. Purpose 

The District allocates funding each fiscal year to its Community Benefit Program, which grants 

funding to community organizations. Accordingly, this Agreement grants funding under the 

District’s Community Benefit Program to Recipient in order to [Describe project/service for which 

funds will be used] and the useful lifetime of the project as outlined in Recipient’s Proposal 

submitted on or about [Insert Date].  Recipient’s work plan for its Community Benefit Program 

Grant Proposal is incorporated herein by reference. 

2. CBP Funds 

The award amount of $ [Insert Amount] (“CBP” Funds”) granted to Recipient pursuant to this 

Agreement may be payable in two payments if the award amount exceeds $100,000.00. If the 

award amount exceeds $100,000.00, an initial payment necessary to meet the Recipient’s needs 

will be made. Any remaining balance of the award amount will be made in a second payment on. 

[Insert Date or state, is not applicable]. 

3. Terms of Agreement 

The term of this Agreement is from [Insert Date] through [Insert Date], except in the event that 

this Agreement is terminated earlier as set forth herein. 

4. Budget and Payment Schedule 

In the event a second payment is made for award amounts exceeding $100,000.00, those payments 

will be made upon the District’s receipt of an initial report with the appropriate back-up 

documentation as explained herein.  

Recipient’s initial report is due no later than [Insert Date or state, is not applicable]. 

Recipient must submit a final report 13 months from the date of this contract’s execution.  

The initial and final reports shall verify award funds have been spent in accordance with the 

purpose of the funding and shall be submitted with a cover letter, a list of expenditures and 

accounting, copies of documents including, but not limited to, contracts, invoices, receipts, checks, 

bank statements, credit card statements and payroll expense reports. If Recipient fails to provide 

timely reports, Recipient may be subject to discontinuance of funding or a return of CBP Funds to 

District. Reports shall be delivered to the District’s office. 

021



FPUD CBP 2024 Funding Agreement  

(Revised 8.12.2024 (Prior: 60065.00500\41078795.1) 

2 

 

5. Recipient Obligations 

Recipient shall cooperate in efforts undertaken by District to evaluate the effectiveness and use of 

the CBP Funds. Recipient shall participate in and comply with all on-site evaluation and contract 

monitoring procedures, including interviews with Recipient’s staff. Recipient shall also provide 

written status reports to District as set forth herein. Recipient shall attend at least one (1) regular 

meeting of the District during the Agreement term. 

6. Procurement Requirements 

All services and projects procured using CBP Funds shall comply with the District’s procurement 

and competitive bidding procedures set forth in Article 5 of the District’s Administrative Code, 

which includes but is not limited to the following bidding requirements:   

a. Purchases under $10,000 shall be purchased in the most prudent and economical manner 

possible. 

b. Purchases of $10,000 or more shall be made only after obtaining three (3) written 

quotations. 

c. Purchases greater than $60,000 up to $200,000 require compliance with the District’s 

Informal Bid Procedures. 

d. Purchases greater than $200,000 require compliance with the District’s Formal Bid 

Procedures. In the event that CBP Funds exceed $200,000, additional terms and conditions 

related to the use of such funds will apply. 

If the services and/or project undertaken by Recipient pursuant to this Agreement constitute a 

“public works” or “maintenance” project, Recipient shall comply with all applicable Labor Code 

requirements, including but not limited to, payment of prevailing wage rates, employment of 

apprentices, hours of labor, submission of payroll records and registration with the Department of 

Industrial Relations (DIR). The performance of such services and/or project may be subject to 

compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR. 

7. Acknowledgement Requirement 

Recipient shall provide acknowledgement to the District with an official sponsor line as well as 

the Fallbrook Public Utility District logo on all print and electronic materials, press releases, 

website references, and any other form of written and verbal publicity that relates to the funded 

service(s) and/or project. Recipient shall have no other permission to otherwise publicize or use 

the Fallbrook Public Utility District logo without the prior written consent of the District. District 

will provide Recipient with monthly content to be used for social media promotion of the District. 

8. Changes or Modifications to the Use of District CBP Funds 

Recipient shall submit to District, in writing, any requests for revisions prior to implementation of 

any proposed changes in the use of CBP Funds. The District must receive such requests at least 

thirty (30) days prior to the date that requested changes are to be implemented. 

022



FPUD CBP 2024 Funding Agreement  

(Revised 8.12.2024 (Prior: 60065.00500\41078795.1) 

3 

 

9. Legal Responsibility/Liability 

In authorizing execution of this Agreement, the Recipient is solely responsible for ensuring that 

CBP Funds are allocated for the purpose or purposes for which this Agreement was intended, as 

outlined in Recipient’s Proposal. Recipient shall be responsible for compliance with all terms of 

this Agreement. In no event shall District be legally responsible or liable for Recipient’s 

performance or failure to perform under the terms of this Agreement. 

In the case of physical improvements to real property paid for with CBP Funds (“CBP Funded 

Physical Improvements”),  Recipient agrees and acknowledges that during the useful life of the 

CBP Funded Physical Improvements: 

  

1. The real property upon which CBP Funded Physical Improvements were made must be 

accessible to the public. 

  

2. Recipient shall be responsible for returning to the District, CBP Funds granted under this 

Agreement if, due to Recipient’s action or inaction, the real property upon which CBP Funded 

Physical Improvements were made is no longer accessible for the public.  

 

10. Reduction of Awarded Funds 

District may reduce, suspend, or terminate the payment or amount of the CBP Funds if the 

Recipient is not meeting the objectives of the Agreement as determined in the District’s sole 

discretion. Recipient understands and agrees that its failure to comply with its obligations under 

this Agreement, including, without limitation, paragraphs 13, 18, and 20 herein, may result in 

Recipient’s disqualification from participation in subsequent contract cycles with the District. 

Recipient hereby expressly waives any and all claims against District for damages arising from the 

termination, suspension, or reduction of the CBP Funds. 

11. Other Funding Sources 

Recipient shall make available, as requested by District, information regarding any other funding 

sources for the project or service(s) provided by Recipient. 

12. Fund Use Description 

Recipient shall make available for prospective participants or others a description detailing the 

nature of the project or service(s) that are being funded by District. This written project description 

may be a separate document or incorporated in the overall project materials developed by 

Recipient. Upon request, Recipient shall provide a copy of the project or service(s) description to 

the District. 

13. Independent Contractor Status 

The relationship between District and Recipient, and the agents, employees, and subcontractors of 

Recipient, in the performance of this Agreement shall be one of independent contractors, and no 

agent, employee, or subcontractor of Recipient shall be deemed an officer, employee, or agent of 

District. 

023



FPUD CBP 2024 Funding Agreement  

(Revised 8.12.2024 (Prior: 60065.00500\41078795.1) 

4 

 

14. Use of Funds for Lobbying or Political Purposes 

Recipient is prohibited from using CBP Funds provided by District for any political campaign or 

to support attempts to influence legislation by any governmental body. 

15. Federal, State, Local Laws, Regulations, and Organizational Documents 

Recipient shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, including but not 

limited to labor laws, occupational and general safety laws, and licensing laws. All licenses, 

permits, notices, and certificates as are required to be maintained by Recipient shall be in effect 

throughout the term of this Agreement. Recipient shall immediately notify District if any required 

licenses or permits are canceled, suspended, or otherwise become ineffective. 

16. Conflict of Interest/Self-Dealing 

Recipient and Recipient’s officers and employees shall not have a financial interest or acquire any 

financial interest, direct or indirect, in any business entity or source of income that could be 

financially affected by, or otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with, the performance of 

services required under this Agreement 

17. Authorization and License to Use Commercial Image in Promotional Materials 

Recipient understands that District may wish to utilize Recipient’s name and logo, along with any 

photographic or video images of Recipient’s premises, operations, and activities in promotional 

materials designed to publicize the District’s mission and service to the community served by the 

District. By entering into this Agreement, Recipient hereby grants permission and license to the 

District to utilize Recipient’s name, logo, and commercial image, along with any photographs, 

videotape footage, or other graphic illustrations of Recipient’s premises, operations, and activities, 

as further consideration for receipt of the CBP Funds. 

18. Indemnification 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Recipient shall indemnify, defend and hold District and the 

CBP Committee, including past and current CBP Committee members, harmless against and from 

any and all claims or suits for damages or injury arising from Recipient’s performance of this 

Agreement or from any activity, work, or thing done, permitted or suffered by Recipient in 

conjunction with the performance of this Agreement. Recipient shall further indemnify, defend 

and hold District and past and current CBP Committee members harmless against and from any 

and all claims or suits arising from any breach or default of any performance of an obligation of 

Recipient hereunder, and against and from all costs, attorneys’ fees, expenses and liabilities related 

to any claim or any action or proceeding brought within the scope of this indemnification. This 

indemnification obligation shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

19. Documentation of Revenues and Expenses 

Recipient shall maintain an accounting system that accurately reflects and documents all fiscal 

transactions for which the CBP Funds are used. Recipient shall maintain full and complete 

documentation of all revenue and expenses (including subcontracted, overhead, and indirect 

024



FPUD CBP 2024 Funding Agreement  

(Revised 8.12.2024 (Prior: 60065.00500\41078795.1) 

5 

 

expenses) and procurement documentation associated with use of the CBP Funds. During the term 

of this Agreement and thereafter, District and its authorized representative(s) shall have the right 

to review all Recipient financial records, including records related to the use of CBP Funds. 

20. Reports and Record Retention 

All Recipient records pertaining to the use of CBP Funds shall be maintained at Recipient’s main 

local office for at least five (5) years following the year in which funds were granted and will be 

made available for District review upon request. 

21. Governing Law 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 

California. Any action brought to enforce these terms and conditions shall be brought in a state or 

federal court in the County of San Diego. 

22. Assignment or Transfer 

Recipient shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement or entitlement to CBP Funds 

without the written consent of District. 

23. Entire Agreement, Amendment 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of the parties as to those matters contained 

herein and supersedes and cancels any prior or contemporaneous oral or written understanding, 

promises or representations with respect to those matters covered hereunder. This Agreement may 

not be modified or altered except in writing signed by both parties. 

24. Notices 

Any notice required or permitted thereunder may be given by a party to the other party at the 

address set forth in the signature block of this Agreement. Either party may change its address for 

purposes of notice by complying with the requirements of this section. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written 

above. 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY 

DISTRICT 

 [INSERT RECIPIENT NAME] 

By:   By:  

Name: Jack Bebee  Name:       

Title: General Manager  Title:       

Address: 
990 E. Mission Rd.  

Fallbrook, CA 92028  Address:       

 

025



E
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Jennifer DeMeo, Board President 

DATE: October 28, 2024 

SUBJECT: Request to Reschedule the December 2, 2024 combined November / 
December Regular Board Meeting to December 9, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Description 
 
To request Board approval to move the combined November/December Regular Board 
Meeting from December 2, 2024 to December 9, 2024. 
 
Purpose 
 
Due to scheduling conflicts, Staff requests moving the combined November/December 
Regular Board Meeting to December 9, 2024. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board authorize rescheduling the combined November/December Regular 
Board Meeting to December 9, 2024. 
 

026



F 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Engineering & Operations Committee 

DATE: October 28, 2024 

SUBJECT: Award of Rattlesnake Tank Site Improvement Project  
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Description 
 
Request for Board approval to award the Rattlesnake Tank Site Improvement Project to 
the lowest responsive bidder. 
 
Purpose 
 
Rattlesnake Tank is a 3.5 million gallon steel reservoir that was installed in the 1950’s. 
The tank itself is in good condition, but the site around the tank is in need of significant 
improvements due to erosion and storm water issues around the site. The project 
primarily consists of slope stabilization measures, regrading and adding a ring footing 
around the tank, and installing storm water drainage infrastructure. District staff 
prepared the design package for the project and solicited for general contractor 
construction bids. Bid opening was October 8, 2024. Five bids were received. A 
summary of the bid results is below: 
 

Company Name Bid Amount 

NMN Construction $818,000 

Shaw Equipment $821,000 

PK Mechanical $840,000 

Metro Builders $1,165,407 

HPS Mechanical $1,232,943 

 
NMN Construction was the apparent lowest responsible bidder at $818,000. NMN 
Construction has not performed work for the District in the past, but has 30 years of 
experience successfully completing work of a similar nature for public agencies 
throughout Southern California.  
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
The work will be completed within the Board authorized total capital budget.   
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board award the Rattlesnake Tank Site Improvements Project to the lowest 
responsible bidder, NMN Construction for $818,000.  

027



G 

 

M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors

FROM: Kevin Collins, Purchasing/Warehouse/Fleet Supervisor

DATE: October 28, 2024

SUBJECT: Amendment of Administrative Code Article 5 – Purchasing Procedures 
_____________________________________________________________________
 
Description 
 

In order to reduce conflicts in section 5.4 of the Administrative Code following personnel 
adjustments, Article 5 of the FPUD administrative code is requested to be amended.
 
Purpose 
 

Section 5.4, Definitions, describes the specific job titles for General Manager “designee” 
for procurements. As FPUD’s personnel changes titles or role or new positions are 
added, such as the recent I.T. Manager position there are also updates needed each 
time to Section 5.4.  
 
This information identified in the Administrative Code is already delegated to the 
General Manager and specific positions and amounts is updated and documented 
internally under the General Manager Authority. Staff is requesting that the detailed 
redundant information with specific positions be removed from the Administrative Code.
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
There is no budgetary impact for this amendment. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5083, amending Article 5 of the FPUD 
Administrative Code with the above noted changes. 
 
 
 

028



5-2 

 

 Sec.  5.3 Procurement  Philosophy.  

 

Purchases of goods, materials, supplies, equipment, and capital assets shall 

be made from time to time, in the most economical quantity, in order to provide the District 

with maximum benefit for minimum expenditures.  Quality and reliability of products are 

also important factors which may, on a case-by-case basis, cause rejection of an inferior 

product that does not meet specified requirements.  It is also essential that purchases of all 

goods, materials, supplies, equipment, and capital assets be done by the District in a fair 

and open manner that promotes public confidence in the District and reinforces the public 

perception of fairness and equal opportunity for all competing vendors offering their 

products or services to the District. Contracts for works of construction and all services 

shall be made from time to time, after complying with applicable legal requirements and 

these procurement policies and procedures.  To the extent permitted by law, and subject to 

the limitations established in Section  5.10, purchases should be made from vendors located 

within the boundaries of the District.   

 

 Sec.  5.4 Definitions. 

 

a. Articles.  Goods, materials, supplies, equipment, capital assets, and advertising 

required to carry on the day-to-day operations of the District, including without 

limitation, office supplies, computer hardware and software, communications 

equipment, equipment, materials and supplies for distribution and treatment, 

including meters, meter parts, and pipeline materials.   

 

b. Commission. The California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission. 

 

c. Designee.  The General Manager may authorize the following persons as his 

designee in those areas in which they exercise budgeting control:.  

 

 

(1) Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer – (Articles related to office equipment and 

supplies, all computer hardware and software, communication equipment, and contract services). 

 

(2) Operations Manager – (Articles used for distribution and treatment and SCADA). 

 

(3) Field Services Manager – (Construction and field equipment and materials, contract change 

orders).   

 

(4) Chief Plant Operator – (Articles used for treatment). 

 

(5) Engineering Manager – (Contract services, contract change orders).   

 

(6) Senior Accountant – (Contract services, articles related to office equipment and supplies).   

 

(7) Field Supervisors – (Articles such as field equipment and materials).   

 

029



5-3 

 

(8) Purchasing/Warehouse/Fleet Supervisor – (Warehouse, fleet, and related articles). 

 

d. Maintenance.  As defined in Public Contract Code § 22002, Maintenance includes 

all of the following:  (1) routine, recurring, and usual work for the preservation or 

protection of any publicly owned or publicly operated facility for its intended 

purposes (2) minor repainting (3) resurfacing of streets and highways at less than 

one inch (4) landscape maintenance, including mowing, watering, trimming, 

pruning, planting, replacement of plants, and servicing of irrigation and sprinkler 

systems (5) work performed to keep, operate, and maintain publicly owned water, 

power, or waste disposal systems, including, but not limited to, dams, reservoirs, 

powerplants, and electrical transmission lines of 230,000 volts and higher.  

 

e. Open Purchase Order.  A purchase order for Articles which is effective for a 

specified period of time, not more than annually, and within the same budget year, 

i.e., office supplies and auto parts. 

 

f. Professional Services.  Professional services, such as services involving provision 

of a report, study, plan, design, specification, document, program, advice, 

recommendation, analysis, review, inspection, investigation, audit, brokering or 

representation of the District before or in dealings with another party, or any other 

services which require a special skill or expertise of a professional, scientific or 

technical nature.  Professional Services include architectural, landscape 

architectural, engineering, environmental, land surveying, construction project 

management services.  Professional Services also include legal, financial, 

accounting, and planning services.  

 

g. Public Project.  Defined in Cal. Public Contract Code § 22002, means any of the 

following: (1) Construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, 

improvement, demolition, and repair work involving any publicly owned, leased, 

or operated facility and (2) Painting or repainting of any publicly owned, leased, or 

operated facility. 

 

 Sec.  5.5 Procedures for the Purchase of Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles  

 

a. Purchase Procedures for Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in the Amount 

of $60,000 or Less (“Small Purchase Procedures”). 

 

The General Manager or Designee may make purchases of Public Projects, 

Maintenance, and Articles in an amount of $60,000 or less, in accordance with the 

following Small Purchase Procedures, which the Board has imposed for such 

purchases, in the interests of sound business judgment.   

 

(1) Purchases of $10,000 or more shall be made after obtaining three (3) written 

quotations.  Purchases under $10,000 shall be purchased in the most prudent 

and economical manner possible, but do not require multiple competitive 

quotations. 

030



RESOLUTION NO. 5083
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT AMENDING 

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ARTICLE 5,  

DISTRICT PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES 
 

* * * * * 
 

 WHEREAS, the purchase designee definitions to Section 5.4 of Article 5 of the 
Administrative Code has become outdated; and  
 

 WHEREAS, the General Manager may authorize persons as his designee in 
those areas in which they exercise budgeting control.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Fallbrook Public Utility District as follows:  
 

1. The Board approves the proposed revisions to Section 5.4 of Article 5 of the 
Administrative Code as set forth in Exhibit A and incorporated herein.     
 

2. The remaining provisions of Article 5 are unaffected and reconfirmed hereby. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility 
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 28th day of October, 2024, by the 
following vote: 
 
 AYES:   
 NOES:  
 ABSTAIN:   
 ABSENT:  
 
  _____________________________ 
  President, Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

031



5-1 

 

Article  5. District Procurement Procedures.  
 

 Sec.  5.1 Authority. 

  

California Public Contract Code Sections 20200-20207.7, as well as other 

provisions in the California Public Contract Code, certain miscellaneous statutes found in 

the Public Utility District Act (Public Utilities Code Section 15501 et seq.), and the 

California Government Code, govern procurement (purchasing and contracting) by the 

District of the following: 

 

 Articles such as goods, materials, supplies, equipment, capital assets, and 

advertising 

 Works of construction, alteration, and non-professional services (including 

repair and maintenance)  

 Professional services  

 

The District has elected to become subject to the provisions of the Uniform 

Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (the "Act"), Public Contract Code Section 22000 

et seq., which provides alternative procedures for the bidding and awarding of public 

contracts.  As provided in Public Contract Code Section 22003, these procedures may also 

be utilized for maintenance work and other work that does not fall within the definition of 

“public project.” Accordingly, it is the District’s intent to utilize these procedures for 

“public projects” and all other purchases otherwise subject to Public Contract Code 

Sections 20200-20207.7. 

 

The provisions of this Article 5 shall not apply to the acquisition of land by 

the District. 

 

 Sec.  5.2 General. 

 

The ongoing operation of the District requires the procurement of various 

items, construction and services.  Since it is necessary to procure these items, construction 

and services on a regular basis to carry on the day-to-day operations of the District, and 

since the Board of Directors reviews and approves all procurements through the budgeting 

process, or otherwise approves procurements by separate action from time to time, the 

following formal procurement policies and procedures are provided for implementation by 

District staff.  These formal procedures are intended to implement the above-listed 

requirements of the California Public Contract Code, California Government Code, and 

California Public Utilities Code,  which are mandatory for Public Utility Districts located 

within the State of California. State law forbids any director or other officer of the District 

from being interested, directly or indirectly, in any contract awarded or to be awarded by 

the Board, or in the profits to be derived from it. 

 

 

 

   

EXHIBIT A 

REVISIONS TO ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ARTICLE 5 

032



5-2 

 

 Sec.  5.3 Procurement  Philosophy.  

 

Purchases of goods, materials, supplies, equipment, and capital assets shall 

be made from time to time, in the most economical quantity, in order to provide the District 

with maximum benefit for minimum expenditures.  Quality and reliability of products are 

also important factors which may, on a case-by-case basis, cause rejection of an inferior 

product that does not meet specified requirements.  It is also essential that purchases of all 

goods, materials, supplies, equipment, and capital assets be done by the District in a fair 

and open manner that promotes public confidence in the District and reinforces the public 

perception of fairness and equal opportunity for all competing vendors offering their 

products or services to the District. Contracts for works of construction and all services 

shall be made from time to time, after complying with applicable legal requirements and 

these procurement policies and procedures.  To the extent permitted by law, and subject to 

the limitations established in Section  5.10, purchases should be made from vendors located 

within the boundaries of the District.   

 

 Sec.  5.4 Definitions. 

 

a. Articles.  Goods, materials, supplies, equipment, capital assets, and advertising 

required to carry on the day-to-day operations of the District, including without 

limitation, office supplies, computer hardware and software, communications 

equipment, equipment, materials and supplies for distribution and treatment, 

including meters, meter parts, and pipeline materials.   

 

b. Commission. The California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission. 

 

c. Designee.  The General Manager may authorize persons as his designee in those 

areas in which they exercise budgeting control.  

 

d. Maintenance.  As defined in Public Contract Code § 22002, Maintenance includes 

all of the following:  (1) routine, recurring, and usual work for the preservation or 

protection of any publicly owned or publicly operated facility for its intended 

purposes (2) minor repainting (3) resurfacing of streets and highways at less than 

one inch (4) landscape maintenance, including mowing, watering, trimming, 

pruning, planting, replacement of plants, and servicing of irrigation and sprinkler 

systems (5) work performed to keep, operate, and maintain publicly owned water, 

power, or waste disposal systems, including, but not limited to, dams, reservoirs, 

powerplants, and electrical transmission lines of 230,000 volts and higher.  

 

e. Open Purchase Order.  A purchase order for Articles which is effective for a 

specified period of time, not more than annually, and within the same budget year, 

i.e., office supplies and auto parts. 

 

f. Professional Services.  Professional services, such as services involving provision 

of a report, study, plan, design, specification, document, program, advice, 

recommendation, analysis, review, inspection, investigation, audit, brokering or 

033



5-3 

 

representation of the District before or in dealings with another party, or any other 

services which require a special skill or expertise of a professional, scientific or 

technical nature.  Professional Services include architectural, landscape 

architectural, engineering, environmental, land surveying, construction project 

management services.  Professional Services also include legal, financial, 

accounting, and planning services.  

 

g. Public Project.  Defined in Cal. Public Contract Code § 22002, means any of the 

following: (1) Construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, 

improvement, demolition, and repair work involving any publicly owned, leased, 

or operated facility and (2) Painting or repainting of any publicly owned, leased, or 

operated facility. 

 

 Sec.  5.5 Procedures for the Purchase of Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles  

 

a. Purchase Procedures for Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in the Amount 

of $60,000 or Less (“Small Purchase Procedures”). 

 

The General Manager or Designee may make purchases of Public Projects, 

Maintenance, and Articles in an amount of $60,000 or less, in accordance with the 

following Small Purchase Procedures, which the Board has imposed for such 

purchases, in the interests of sound business judgment.   

 

(1) Purchases of $10,000 or more shall be made after obtaining three (3) written 

quotations.  Purchases under $10,000 shall be purchased in the most prudent 

and economical manner possible, but do not require multiple competitive 

quotations. 

 

(2) The requirement for three (3) quotations is not required in those cases where 

the Board has approved the purchase as a “standardized item” such as 

meters, or for Open Purchase Orders as provided below. 

 

(3) Small Purchase Procedures specific to Articles. All purchases shall be made 

by purchase order after a properly authorized Purchase Order Requisition 

(POR) has been completed, signed and forwarded in the required manner.  

The only exceptions to this requirement are purchases made under a pre-

existing Open Purchase Order, purchase of small routine items from 

suppliers with open purchase order or accounts, or purchases made during 

emergency.  The purchase order must indicate the name of the suggested 

vendor and an exact description and price of each Article.  Shipping 

charges, if any, and applicable taxes must also be included in the total price.  

The purchase order shall be reviewed and signed by the General Manager 

or Designee.   

 

Open Purchase Orders shall generally be utilized for the purchase of 

repetitive need, low-valued Articles or for the purchase of Articles (such as 

034



5-4 

 

automotive supplies) which must be available on short notice.  Open 

Purchase Orders shall not be utilized as a substitute for the normal 

requisition and purchase order process described in this section.  Open 

Purchase Orders may be written for a single class of consumable Articles  

i.e., office supplies, without listing specific, exact descriptions of each 

Article, but not to exceed the authority listed above and cannot span a period 

of time which includes more than one fiscal year. 

 

(4) Small Purchase Procedures specific to Public Projects and Maintenance. All 

purchases shall be made by written contract.  Any such contracts shall be 

awarded on the basis of price and such other criteria established by the 

General Manager or Designee, as may be in the best interest of the District, 

in light of the type of work involved.  Contracts for Public Projects shall 

require the successful bidder to execute a bond, in a form approved by the 

Board, for the faithful performance of the contract. Additionally if the 

contract exceeds $25,000 and involves erection, construction, alteration, 

repair or improvement of any public structure, building, road or other public 

improvement of any kind, the successful bidder shall execute a payment 

bond, as required by the provisions of the California Civil Code. 

 

(5) Petty cash.  Occasionally purchases of minor items may be required.  

Payments for such items may be authorized from petty cash funds by the 

General Manager or Designee.  In no case will approval exceed $50.00. 

 

(6) Quote information shall be retained until completion of the annual audit for 

the fiscal year in which purchased, or as otherwise established in the 

District’s Records Retention Schedule. 

 

(7) Nothing in these Small Purchase Procedures shall prevent the General 

Manager, or Designee, from obtaining multiple quotations or from 

implementing the Informal Bid Procedures or Formal Bid Procedures if it 

is in the best economic interests of the District to do so.  This judgment shall 

be made in the sole discretion of the General Manager or Designee. 

 

(8) Nothing in these Small Purchase Procedures shall prohibit the District from 

doing or causing to be done directly by the District, and without any 

contract, any or all work necessary or proper in or about the making of all 

current and ordinary repairs or in or about current and ordinary upkeep or 

maintenance.   

 

(8) Under no circumstances shall purchases be split or separated into multiple 

purchases in order to avoid the Small Purchase Procedures, Informal Bid 

Procedures and/or Formal Bid Procedures set forth herein 

 

b. Purchase Procedures for Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in Excess of  

$60,000 and $200,000 or Less (“Informal Bid Procedures”). 

035



5-5 

 

 

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 22034, the District adopts the 

following Informal Bid Procedures, applicable to purchases of Public Projects, 

Maintenance, and Articles in excess of $60,000 and $200,000 or less.  Contract 

award shall be made by the Board.    

 

(1) The District shall maintain a list of qualified contractors, identified 

according to categories of work. Minimum criteria for development and 

maintenance of the contractors list shall be as required by the Commission. 

 

(2) All contractors on the list for the category of work being bid or all 

construction trade journals pursuant to in Public Contract Code Section 

22036, or both all contractors on the list for the category of work being bid 

and all construction trade journals pursuant to in Public Contract Code 

Section 22036, shall be mailed, faxed or emailed, a notice inviting informal 

bids unless the product or service is proprietary. 

 

(3) All delivery of notices inviting informal bids to contractors and construction 

trade journals shall be completed not less than 10 calendar days before bids 

are due.  The notice inviting informal bids may also be published in in a 

newspaper of general circulation.  

 

(4) The notice inviting informal bids shall describe the project in general terms 

and how to obtain more detailed information about the project, and state the 

time and place for the submission of bids. 

 

(5) If all bids received are in excess of $200,000, the Board may, by adoption 

of a resolution by a four-fifths (4/5) vote, award the contract, at one  

$212,500 or less, to the lowest responsible bidder, if it determines the cost 

estimate of the District is reasonable.    

 

(6) If awarded, a contract will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, 

consistent with the quality and delivery requirements.  

 

(7) All contracts for Public Projects shall require the successful bidder to 

execute a bond, in a form approved by the Board, for the faithful 

performance of the contract.  Additionally if the contract involves erection, 

construction, alteration, repair or improvement of any public structure, 

building, road or other public improvement of any kind, the successful 

bidder shall execute a payment bond, as required by the provisions of the 

California Civil Code. 

 

(8) The Board shall have the right to reject all or any of the bids received.   

 

c. Purchase Procedures for Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in Excess of  

$200,000 (“Formal Bid Procedures”). 

036



5-6 

 

 

Purchases of Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in an amount exceeding  

$200,000 shall be procured pursuant to the following Formal Bid Procedures.  

Contract award shall be made by the Board.  Additionally, all plans and 

specifications for Public Projects shall be adopted by the Board or General 

Manager/ Designee.    

 

(1) In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 22037, a notice inviting 

formal bids shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation, printed 

and published, at least 14 calendar days before the date of opening the bids, 

in the jurisdiction of the District and any such other newspaper publications 

deemed appropriate by the General Manager or Designee.  Notice inviting 

formal bids shall state the time and place for the receiving and opening of 

sealed bids and distinctly describe the project.  

 

If applicable, the notice inviting formal bids shall also be sent electronically, 

if available, by either facsimile or electronic mail and mailed to all 

construction trade journals. The notice shall be sent at least 15 calendar days 

before the date of opening the bids. 

 

(2) All bids for shall be presented under sealed cover. If awarded, a contract 

will be awarded to the responsible bidder who submits the lowest 

responsive bid.   

 

(3) All bids for Public Projects shall be accompanied by one of the following 

forms of bidder’s security: 

 

 i. Cash 

 ii. A cashier’s check made payable to the District 

iii. A certified check made payable to the District 

iv. A bidder’s bond executed by an admitted surety insurer made 

payable to the District in the form provided by the District 

 

Upon an award to the lowest bidder, the security of an unsuccessful bidder 

shall be returned in a reasonable period of time, but in no event shall that 

security be held by the District beyond 60 days from the time the award is 

made. 

 

(4) All contracts for Public Projects shall require the successful bidder to 

execute a bond, in a form approved by the Board, for the faithful 

performance of the contract.  Additionally if the contract involves erection, 

construction, alteration, repair or improvement of any public structure, 

building, road or other public improvement of any kind, the successful 

bidder shall execute a payment bond, as required by the provisions of the 

California Civil Code. 

 

037



5-7 

 

(5) The Board shall have the right to reject all or any of the bids received.   

 

d. Nothing in this Section shall preclude the District from utilizing the design-build 

project delivery method where authorized by and in accordance with the provisions 

and requirements set forth in California Public Contract Code Section 22160 et seq., 

as it may be amended from time to time.  

 

e.  Any federally funded project shall comply with Uniform Guidance for 

Procurement. 

 

Sec. 5.6 Procedures for Procurement of Professional Services. 

 

a. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 4526 et seq., the District shall 

secure professional services on the basis of demonstrated competence and on the 

professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of the 

services required. When specific technical expertise or experience is required, the 

District may negotiate the scope and fee for these services with an individual firm 

with this specific expertise.   

 

b. The District may, for procurement of architectural, landscape architectural, 

engineering, environmental, land surveying, and construction management 

services, utilize the Qualification-Based Selection procedures adopted by the 

Architects and Engineers Conference Committee of California, as deemed 

appropriate by the General Manager or Designee.  

 

c. If the value of the services are estimated to be $60,000 or more, the District shall 

issue a formal Request for Proposals for the services.  Additionally, if deemed in 

the best interests of the District as determined by the General Manager or Designee, 

the District may first issue a Request for Qualifications to solicit firms with the 

necessary qualifications for the services.   

 

d. If the value of the services are estimated to be less than $60,000, where practical, 

three proposals shall be obtained unless the General Manager or Designee deems 

otherwise appropriate.   

 

e. Award of Professional Services Contracts may be made by the General Manager 

for contracts in the amount of $60,000 or less. Contracts in excess of $60,000 shall 

be awarded by the Board.   

 

f. The contract amendment procedures outlined in this Article apply to Professional 

Services Contracts.   

 

Sec.  5.7 Prequalification.   

 

The District may prequalify contractors, pursuant to the provisions and 

requirements of California Public Contract Code Section 20101, as determined appropriate 

038



5-8 

 

in the reasonable discretion of the General Manager or District Engineer.  Prequalification 

shall be through a uniform system of rating bidders on the basis of completed 

questionnaires and financial statements in a form specified by the Board.  The District may 

accordingly limit bids or proposals it receives to those contractors who are prequalified. 

 

Sec.  5.8 Emergencies. 

 

California Public Contract Code Section 22050 authorizes special 

contracting procedures in cases of “emergency.”  An “emergency” for purposes of Section 

22050 is defined as a sudden, unexpected occurrence that poses a clear and imminent 

danger, requiring immediate action to prevent or mitigate the loss or impairment of life, 

health, property, or essential public services. 
 

In the case of an emergency, as defined herein, the General Manager or 

Designee, may repair or replace a public facility, take any directly related and immediate 

action required by the emergency, and procure the necessary equipment, services, and 

supplies for those purposes, without giving notice for bids to let contracts.  The General 

Manager, or Designee, must report to the Board at its next meeting required pursuant to 

this Section  5.8, the reasons justifying why the emergency will not permit a delay resulting 

from a competitive solicitation for bids and why the action is necessary to respond to the 

emergency. 

  

If the General Manager or Designee, orders any action specified herein, the 

Board shall initially review the emergency action not later than seven days after the action, 

or at its next regularly scheduled meeting if that meeting will occur not later than 14 days 

after the action, and at least at every regularly scheduled meeting thereafter until the action 

is terminated, to determine, by a four-fifths vote, that there is a need to continue the action, 

unless the General Manager or Designee, has terminated that action prior to the Board 

reviewing the emergency action and making a determination.  When the Board reviews the 

emergency action, it shall terminate the action at the earliest possible date that conditions 

warrant so that the remainder of the emergency action may be completed by giving notice 

for bids to let contracts. 

 

 Sec.  5.9 Exceptions to Procurement Requirements.   

 

a. Sole Source Exception. 

 

Notwithstanding any provision in this Article  5, the procurement requirements set 

out in this Article  5 shall not apply to the procurement of Articles, Professional 

Services, Public Projects, or Maintenance that can only be obtained from one 

supplier or contractor and for which obtaining quotes or bids is therefore impossible 

or not in the public interest, such that no competitive advantage can be gained by 

soliciting quotes or bids.  Sole source contracts or agreements up to $60,000 may 

be procured by the General Manager or Designee.  The Board must approve any 

source contracts or agreements of $60,000 or more. 

 

 b. Purchases when Price Controlled by an Official Rate-Making Body. 

039



5-9 

 

 

Whether approved by the General Manager or Designee, or the Board, the District 

is authorized to procure services or Articles without quotation or bid if the price is 

controlled by an official rate-making body such as is the case with wholesale water 

from Eastern Municipal Water District, electricity, gas and telephone, and the 

services are provided for in the operating budget. 

 

 Sec.  5.10 Local Procurements. 

 

a. It is the District’s policy to encourage local businesses to provide goods and 

services to the District in order to maintain a healthy local economy, to increase 

local competition, and to lower core costs of goods and services.  Local preference 

for the procurement of eligible contracts may be allowed, so long as it is not 

otherwise prohibited by funding sources, by providing a 5% local preference where 

the purchase or contracts with a respective local vendor or business during any 

fiscal year do not exceed $60,000.  In order to qualify for this local preference, a 

vendor or business must either (a) be a District rate payer in good standing for the 

past six months, or (b) receive District utility services at its business location for 

the past six months, paid by a third party. 

 

b. Eligible procurements include those contracts which are not otherwise subject to 

competitive bidding, including contracts for the following: 

 

(1) Purchases of Public Projects, Maintenance, and Articles in the amount of  

$60,000 or less, pursuant to Section  5.5(a). 

 

Sec.  5.11 Sale of Surplus Property/Equipment and Scrap Metal. 

 

a. Surplus Property/Equipment.  When it has been determined by the General 

Manager that equipment is no longer appropriate because of capability, size, age,   

etc., to fulfill the District's mission or if a particular piece of equipment is more 

costly to maintain than to replace, the item will be disposed of through the next 

scheduled San Diego County auction.  Should property become surplus through 

obsolescence or through a change  in operating methodology, the excess property 

will be disposed of, as determined by District staff, as follows: 

 

(1) To other public agencies on a bid basis; 

(2) San Diego County Auction, or 

(3) Internet-based inline auction services. 

 

b. Scrap Metal.  The scrap metal which accumulates through the replacing of damaged 

and/or unserviceable items in the course of District operations, shall be sold as scrap 

to local scrap dealers at prevailing rates.  Sales receipts shall be miscellaneous 

revenues of the District. 

 

 Sec.  5.12 Use of District Credit Card. 

040



5-10 

 

  

a. There are certain transactions that are more efficient using a credit card transaction.  

Examples include small purchases that are lower cost on-line, travel arrangements, 

registration for training and other similar services.    

 

b. The credit card shall never be used to circumvent established competitive 

purchasing procedures.  The credit card is prohibited from being used to purchase 

items for personal use under all circumstances.  Personal use of the credit card will 

result in disciplinary action. 

 

c. Authorized cardholders and credit card use shall be per the District Credit Card 

Users Guide as approved by the General Manager.  

 

 Sec.  5.13 Contract Amendment Procedures.   

 

   As delegated by the Board of Directors of the District pursuant to the 

provisions of the Public Utility District Act, the General Manager is authorized to issue 

amendments to contracts as follows: 

 

a. A purchase order or contract may be amended by the issuance of a change order or 

amendment, provided the change which is the subject of the change order or 

amendment is reasonably related to the scope of the original contract. The General 

Manager may issue a change order or amendment which results in a total contract 

price of $60,000 or less.  The General Manager may request approval authority 

from the Board to issue contract amendments for up to 10% of the total contract 

value for specific projects with an initial contract value of greater than $60,000. 

 

b. When the cumulative sum of amendments to a contract would exceed the limits in 

(a) above, a report of such amendments will be presented to the Board at its next 

meeting. Upon acceptance of the amendments by the Board, the General Manager 

shall have additional authorization to issue amendments as if the original contract 

amount were the total of the original amount and all accepted amendments.  

 

ARTICLE 14 (Renumbered as 

Article 5 by Resolution 5006) 

Sec. 14.7 - Rev. 4/95 

Sec. 14.10 – Rev. 3/96 

Sec. 14.5(a), 14.6(a) & (d), 

14.7(d) – Rev. 6/99 

Sec. 14.11 – Added 10/05 

Sec. 14.4e(2),  14.10(c) & 

14.12(g) – Rev. 6/06 

Sec. 14.5(g) – Rev. 8/08 

Sec. 14.4(e),  Rev 01/09 

Secs. 14.4(e)1,3,4,5,(f); 

14.5(a)(d); 14.6(c)(d); 14.7(d); 

14.9(b); 14.11(c) – Rev. 2/10 

041



5-11 

 

 

 

Add Sec. 14.12 – Rev. 2/11 

Secs. 14.4; 14.9 – Rev. 1/13 

Secs. 14.4; 14.13 – Rev. 7/13 

Sec.  14.4 – Rev. 5/15 

Sec. 14.4(f), 14.9(c) – Rev. 1/16 

All Secs. Repealed and Replaced 

- Rev. 6/17 

Sec. 14.4 – Rev. 5/19 

Sec. 5.5 – Rev. 3/21 

Secs. 5.4; 5.5; 5.6; 5.9; 5.10; 

5.13 – Rev. 7/22 

Sec. 5.9(b) – Rev. 5/24 

042



H
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Engineering & Operations Committee 

DATE: October 28, 2024 

SUBJECT: Request for Temporary Sewer Service Agreement for APN 123-010-64 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Description 
 
To request the Board approve a Temporary Sewer Service Agreement (TSSA) between 
Calhoun Family Living Trust and the Fallbrook Public Utility District to allow a sewer 
service lateral to be remote from the owner’s property. 
 
Purpose 
 
The property owner for parcel 123-010-64, also owns the adjacent parcel where the 
nearest existing sewer main is located. The private sewer lateral will be crossing their 
own property to the subject parcel. The owner is required to record an easement for 
any future property owner. In the event the sewer collection system were expanded in 
the future, adding infrastructure on the south side of the parcel, the property owner 
would be required to connect to that future main line.   
 
The attached figure shows the parcel and the location of the private easement where 
the lateral will cross the adjacent property.  
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
None.
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5084 authorizing a Temporary Sewer Service 
Agreement between the Fallbrook Public Utility District and Calhoun Family Living 
Trust.

043



Calhoun TSSA

Esri, HERE, iPC, Esri, HERE, Garmin, iPC, Maxar

World Transportation

MANHOLE

SMART COVER AND DROP

SMART COVER

DISTRICT CO

MANHOLE

DROP

CLEANOUT

SEWER AIRVAC

SEWER VALVE

WYE

SEWER LATERAL

SEWER MAIN

FORCE

GRAVITY

FPUD PARCELS

10/10/2024, 1:41:59 PM

0 0.04 0.080.02 mi

0 0.07 0.130.03 km

1:2,257

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
DISCLAIMER:  By accepting this map,you agree that the Fallbrook Public Utility

044

acook
Polygon

acook
PolyLine

acook
Text Box
APN 123-010-64



RESOLUTION NO. 5084 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AN 

AGREEMENT RESPECTING TEMPORARY SEWER SERVICE 

CONNECTION TO SERVE FOR APN 123-010-64 

 

*  *  *  *  * 

 

 WHEREAS, Calhoun Family Living Trust(“Owner”) are the owners and in 
occupancy of a certain parcel of real property situated in the County of San Diego, 
State of California and within the boundaries of the Fallbrook Public Utility District 
(“District”), which parcel is particularly described in the attached EXHIBIT “A”; and 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is not adjacent to any sewer main of the District 
and the Owners have applied for permission to connect with a District main at a location 
not adjoining said property for the purpose of providing sewer service; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District is willing to grant a temporary connection at its nearest 
main provided the Owners agree to and accept the terms and conditions of the 
following:  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the 
Fallbrook Public Utility District pursuant to the foregoing recitals and in consideration for 
the grant of such temporary connection, the Owners hereby agree for themselves, and 
their successors in interest in the ownership of the attached described real property as 
follows: 

  
(1) The Owners will pay for the installation of a sewer service lateral and 

cleanout connection to the District's existing main and acquire any easement which 
might be necessary over which to run a connecting line. The cost of acquiring such 
easement and the installation and subsequent maintenance of the connecting line 
between the service installed by the District and the attached described real property to 
be entirely at the expense of the Owners, or their successors without any liability to the 
District. The operation of the temporary sewer service connection shall be maintained in 
such a manner as to be free of odors or other nuisances. Application and payment for 
sewer service and the payment of fees to service the above described property shall be 
made at the time this agreement is executed. 

 
(2) The temporary connection shall be available to serve sewer service to the 

attached described real property so long as it shall serve only one parcel, but may be 
terminated by the District upon written notice and disconnected in the event the service 
is extended to any subdivision of the parcel of real property into two or more separate 
parcels to be served from such connection or in the event of construction of two or 
more residences thereon.  

 
(3)  Should the District, or others, hereafter install, or provide, a District sewer 

main adjacent to the above described real property, the temporary service connection 

045



permitted by this Agreement shall, upon demand of the District, be terminated and 
discontinued. Thereafter, any future sewer service shall be provided by a connection to 
the new District main upon payment to the District by Owners, or their successor, of the 
connection fee then established by the District's Board of Directors, together with such 
other reasonable charges as the Board of Directors may determine, including a pro-rata 
share of the cost of installation of such new sewer main. 

  
(4)  In the event that a District sewer main is to be installed adjacent to the 

attached described real property, the Owners, or their successors, shall grant an 
easement through for pipeline purposes to the District across the attached described 
real property as a condition of having service re-established.  

 
(5)  The Owners specifically agree that a violation of the terms and conditions 

herein recited shall terminate right to the temporary connection and in the event the 
District may disconnect the line without further obligation to the Owners or without any 
liability to them or to their successors in interest.  

 
(6)  Upon change of ownership, any parcel receiving sewer service and under 

a Temporary Sewer Service Agreement, will be required, as a condition of continued 
service, for the new owner to enter into a new Temporary Sewer Service Agreement 
with the District.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors does hereby 
authorize its President and Secretary to execute the above described documents and 
consents to recordation of same. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Temporary Sewer Service Agreement 
must be executed by the legal owner(s) of the property described herein and the 
conditions set forth herein met within 180 days commencing October 29, 2024, 
otherwise this authorization is automatically rescinded. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility 
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 28th day of October, 2024, by the 
following roll call vote: 

 
 AYES:   
 NOES:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 ABSENT:   
 
   
 President, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

046



(APN 123-010-64-00) 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 
PARCEL 4 OF PARCEL MAP 19717 RECORDED APRIL 29, 2005 AS FILE NUMBER 2005-

0360081 IN THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA. 

 

047



I 

 

M E M O 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Engineering & Operations Committee 
DATE: October 28, 2024 
SUBJECT: Lake Skinner Hydrology Study 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
To award a Hydrology Study and Conceptual runoff model for Lake Skinner to study the 
loss of runoff over the past 12 years. 
 
Background 
 
Lake Skinner is a manmade lake constructed by Metropolitan Water District (MET) to 
impound potable water for treatment at the Lake Skinner Advanced Water Treatment 
Plant.  When MET built the dam, to create the lake, there was a court settlement (1247-
SD-C) approved on May 8, 1963, which assured Fallbrook Utility District water rights into 
the future.  Following the court settlement there was an MOU developed between MET 
and Fallbrook, which addressed how Fallbrook would receive its allocated runoff from 
storm events.  Over the years, FPUD & MET have tried various methods to measure 
runoff into the lake.  The historical graph (2005 to present) in Attachment 1 shows that 
from 2005 to 2011, the diversions to Fallbrook were fairly regular.  Since then, there has 
only been one diversion in 2019; despite the fact that there had been large precipitation 
events.  For the past two winters, we have received very above normal precipitation but 
no surface water runoff has been noted.  FPUD engaged the Watermaster, for the Santa 
Margarita Watershed, to look at the situation with MET and the District. The WM staff 
(Tech Memo dated 8-21-24) concluded that the ground water table has dropped due to 
the installation of residential wells up gradient in the watershed. During the review of that 
TM it was concluded that a more in depth hydrologic review would be in order. 
 
Budgetary Impact 
 
The work will be completed within the existing budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board authorize the General Manager to sign an agreement with Stetson 
Engineers not to exceed $84,750 to perform the hydrology study and conceptual runoff 
model for Lake Skinner to study the loss of runoff over the past 12 years. Metropolitan 
Water District will reimburse the District for 50% of the cost. 

048



60065.00100\42783481.2 

 

J 

 

M E M O 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Jack Bebee, General Manager 
DATE: October 28, 2024 
SUBJECT: Consider Letter of Support to San Diego County Board of Supervisors to 

Appoint Don McDougal, or another Subdistrict 4 registered voter/ resident,  
to the FPUD Board of Directors, Subdistrict 4 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Purpose 
 

For the Board to consider submitting a letter supporting Mr. Don McDougal to be 

appointed to the FPUD Board of Directors, Subdistrict 4, by the San Diego County Board 

of Supervisors.  
 

Summary 
 

No candidate filed paperwork to run for the Subdistrict 4 Director position with the San 
Diego County Registrar of Voters. Director McDougal’s current term as the Director for 
Subdistrict 4 will expire at noon on December 6, 2024.  
 

Pursuant to Elections Code section 10515 and Board of Supervisors Policy A-77, the 
County Board of Supervisors must appoint someone to the Subdistrict 4 office prior to the 
last Monday before the first Friday in December rather than conduct an election. The 
appointee shall take office upon the expiration of Director McDougal’s current term and 
serve for a full four-year term expiring in December 2028. Pursuant to Board of 
Supervisors Policy A-77, the Board of Supervisors will appoint the person recommended 
by the member of the Board of Supervisors in whose district Subdistrict 4 is located, which 
in this case would be Supervisor Jim Desmond. Director McDougal has expressed an 
interest in continuing to serve as a Director on the FPUD Board. 
 

Given that the County has broad discretion to appoint any registered voter within FPUD’s 
boundaries who is a resident of Subdistrict 4 but may not have a strong opinion on who 
to appoint, the FPUD Board could recommend a candidate, including current Director 
McDougal, to the County Board of Supervisors and Supervisor Desmond so that 
Supervisor Desmond can recommend FPUD’s nominee for appointment by the Board of 
Supervisors.  
  
Recommended Action 
 

That the Board provide direction to staff regarding submittal of a letter to the San Diego 
County Board of Supervisors and Supervisor Desmond supporting its appointment of Don 
McDougal, or another a Subdistrict 4 registered voter/ resident, to the FPUD Board of 
Directors, Subdistrict 4.  
 
Attachments 
San Diego County Board of Supervisors Policy A-77 

049



050



051



052



053



K 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors    

FROM: Jack Bebee, General Manager 

DATE: October 28, 2024 

SUBJECT: Request for Board approval for completion of Acquisition of the Fallbrook 
3 Flow Control Facility from the San Diego County Water Authority 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Description 
 

For the Board to consider authorizing the General Manager to execute the attached Bill 
of Sale for acquisition of the Fallbrook 3 Flow Control Facility for $112,850 from the San 
Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA), which will complete the transfer of all assets 
as part of the detachment process. 
 
Purpose 
 
On December 21, 2023, the Fallbrook Settlement Agreement was executed between 
the District, SDCWA and San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission, which laid 
out an agreement for the completion of the detachment process for the District from 
SDCWA. As part of this agreement the District agreed to acquire the Fallbrook 3 Flow 
Control Facility which is owned and operated by SDCWA at the Market value of the 
facility.  An appraisal was completed that was reviewed by both parties that identified 
the value at $112,850. 
 

 
Fallbrook 3 Flow Control facility is used to meet peak summer demands in periods with 
limited local supplies and provides additional redundancy for the District in case of an 
outage on the second aqueduct.  This facility is the only asset that was owner by 
SDCWA that was required to be transferred as part of the detachment process.  
 

 
Budgetary Impact 
 
The acquisition will be completed within the Board authorized capital budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the attached Bill of Sale for 
acquisition of the Fallbrook 3 Flow Control Facility for $112,850 from the San Diego 
County Water Authority (SDCWA), which will complete the transfer of all assets as part 
of the detachment process. 
 

054



PLEASE RECORD THIS DOCUMENT AT  

NO FEE AS IT IS TO THE BENEFIT OF  

THIS DISTRICT (GOV. CODE §6103) 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND  
WHEN RECORDED, PLEASE MAIL TO: 

San Diego County Water Authority 

Engineering Department 

4677 Overland Avenue 

San Diego, CA  92123 

________________________________________ 

(Space above this line for Recorder’s use) 

DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX: $0.00 

R&T Code 11922 (Government agency acquiring title) 

BILL OF SALE 

This Bill of Sale (Bill of Sale) is entered into between San Diego County Water Authority (Seller) 

and Fallbrook Public Utility District (Purchaser). This Bill of Sale is entered into in furtherance of 

that certain Fallbrook Settlement Agreement by and between Seller and Purchaser, executed in 

December of 2023, (Fallbrook Settlement Agreement), to transfer the Property (as defined herein) 

from Seller to Buyer. 

1. PROPERTY: As used herein, the “Property” shall mean the pipeline, metering, valves, 

appurtenances, and facilities as more particularly described and shown on Exhibit A which 

is incorporated herein. The Property is situated at the facility known as Fallbrook 

3/Rainbow 1 Flow Control Facility (“Facility”) within the Metropolitan Water District 

Easements as described in the Joint Use Agreement Between the Metropolitan Water 

District of Southern California and the San Diego County Water Authority, recorded in the 

Official Records of San Diego County at DOC # 1998-0077307. 

2. CONVEYANCE: For good and valuable consideration in the amount of $112,850, the 

receipt and adequacy of which Seller hereby acknowledges, Seller hereby irrevocably sells, 

assigns, transfers, conveys, grants, and delivers to Purchaser, all of its right, title, and 

interest in the Property. Purchaser shall transfer the funds to Seller by electronic funds 

transfer. 

3. AS IS CONDITION: The Purchaser acknowledges that the Property is transferred to 

Purchaser in ‘as-is’ condition. The Purchaser accepts the Property in its existing “as-is” 

condition given that the Purchaser has either inspected the Property or was given the 

opportunity to inspect the Property but chose not to inspect it. 

055



4. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES: Seller warrants that the Property is free of 

any liens and encumbrances and Seller is the legal owner of the Property. Seller warrants 

that Seller has the full right and authority to sell and del iver the Property. 

5. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES. EXCEPT FOR THE WARRANTIES SET FORTH 

ABOVE, SELLER MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WHATSOEVER 

WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING ANY (a) WARRANTY OF 

MERCHANTABILITY; (b) WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 

PURPOSE; OR (c) WARRANTY AGAINST INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL 

PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD PARTY; WHETHER ARISING BY LAW, COURSE 

OF DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, USAGE OF TRADE, OR OTHERWISE. 

BY ACCEPTING THIS BILL OF SALE, PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT 

HAS NOT RELIED ON ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY MADE BY 

SELLER, OR ANY OTHER PERSON ON SELLER'S BEHALF.  

6. LIABILITIES: The Seller does not assume, nor does the Seller authorize any other person 

on behalf of the Seller to assume, any liability in connection with the sale or delivery of the 

Property. 

7. SELLER ACCESS: Seller retains and hereby reserves all necessary access rights to 

maintain and operate its SCADA and related equipment and related equipment to and from, 

and within the Facility. Seller shall not exercise such access rights in a manner which 

interferes with the Purchaser’s access to or use of the Property or Facility .    

8. GOVERNING LAW: This Bill of Sale and all related documents including all exhibits 

attached hereto, and all matters arising out of or relating to this Bill of Sale, whether 

sounding in contract, tort, or statute are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance 

with, the laws of the State of California, without giving effect to the conflict of laws 

provisions thereof to the extent such principles or rules would require or permit the 

application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than those of the State of California.  

9. DOCUMENTS:  Seller grants, sells, sets over, assigns, transfers, conveys and delivers to 

Purchaser all of Seller’s right, title and interest, if any, in and to any and all plans, drawings, 

renderings, maps and engineering studies used in connection with, or related to the Property   

Upon request, Seller will provide Purchaser with maintenance records related to the 

Property and/or the Facility.  

10. ACCEPTANCE:  Purchaser accepts the Property subject to the terms and conditions in this 

Bill of Sale and the Fallbrook Settlement Agreement.  

11. INCORPORATION OF SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT: This Bill of Sale incorporates by 

reference all of the terms of the Fallbrook Settlement Agreement. In the event of conflict 

between the terms of the Fallbrook Settlement Agreement and the terms of this Bill of Sale, 

the terms of the Fallbrook Settlement Agreement shall govern and control. 

056



12. COUNTERPARTS: This Bill of Sale may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 

be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same 

agreement. A signed copy of this Bill of Sale delivered by email, or other means of 

electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an 

original signed copy of this Bill of Sale. 

 

By signing this Bill of Sale, Purchaser and Seller each acknowledge that they have read, 

understand, accept and have received a copy of this Bill of Sale. 

 

Seller:        Date:     

San Diego County Water Authority 

 

Purchaser:         Date:    

       Fallbrook Public Utility District 

057



 

INFORMATION 
 

6359 

Metropolitan Water District Board Meeting Report 
 
The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan) held its monthly Board 
and committee meetings on October 7-8, 2024.  At these meetings, the Metropolitan Board: 
 

• Unanimously re-elected Chair Adán Ortega for a second term.  EMWD sent a letter of 
congratulations and posted words of congratulations on social media. 
 

• Approved the nomination and naming of the Joseph Jensen Water Treatment Plant Ozone 
Facility in honor of former Metropolitan Director Ina S. Roth. 
  

• Approved the nomination and naming of Metropolitan’s Water Quality Laboratory in honor 
of former Metropolitan Water Quality Manager and Director of Water Quality, Dr. Michael J. 
McGuire. 

 

• Heard an update on outreach and engagement activities for the Climate Adaptation Master 
Plan (CAMP) for Water.  EMWD’s recent Agricultural Customer Listening Session was 
acknowledged by Chair Ortega during the presentation.  Metropolitan is developing a 
working group with member agencies public information officers and plans to strengthen 
tribal engagement on CAMP. 

 

• Voted to defer for another month, the Reverse Cyclic Program agreements with participating 
agencies to defer deliveries of purchased supplies under various water supply conditions.  
The Board expressed that there are outstanding questions that needs to be addressed 
between the member agencies and Metropolitan staff.  

 

• Awarded a $589,957 procurement contract to Vogt Valves for one sleeve valve to be 
installed at the Red Mountain Pressure Control Structure in the Skinner service area.  This is 
a replacement valve project that is based upon Metropolitan’s asset management program.  
EMWD utilizes similar metrics when deciding to repair/refurbish or replace equipment and 
facilities. 
 

• Awarded a $1,833,650 construction contract to Power Engineering Construction Company 
for San Diego Canal Concrete Liner Rehabilitation.  Cracking in water bearing/conveyance 
structures will only get worse with time.  This project is not covered by the Project Labor 
Agreement.  

 

• Awarded a $448,000 contract to Heed Engineering to provide construction materials to 
support the construction of the helicopter hydrant facility at the Robert B. Diemer Water 
Treatment Plant.  EMWD has been inquiring about grants to fund similar facilities to support 
fire operations.  This is an excellent benefit for the local communities. 

 

058



Metropolitan Water District Board Meeting Report 
Page 2 

 

6359 

• Authorized on-call agreements with Black & Veatch Corporation, Burns & McDonnell 
Western Enterprises Inc., HDR Inc., and Stantec Consulting Services Inc., in amounts not to 
exceed $3 million each, for a maximum of three years, for engineering services to support 
zero-emission vehicle (ZEV) infrastructure upgrades at Metropolitan facilities.  Metropolitan 
has many large and small facilities to where ZEV infrastructure is necessary.  The authorized 
contract allows multiple firms to provide flexibility and streamline the design of ZEV 
infrastructure upgrades.  Services will focus on three key areas: ZEV infrastructure 
improvements, hydrogen fueling systems, and enterprise visualization analytics.  The Board 
expressed concerns about the mandate's cost implications and suggested that the 
committee explore sponsoring legislation to address these concerns.  Staff will prepare a 
report outlining potential exemptions from the mandate and cost-reduction measures ahead 
of pursuing any legislative solutions. 

 

• Heard an update on the district housing and property improvements program, including 
efforts to develop a long-term housing strategy for the next 75 years.  The Board appreciated 
the staged approach to planning.  Staff reported refurbishment of 69 homes in the 
preliminary phase, noting that Stage 1 will not include new home construction.  The Board 
expressed interest in further details regarding modular costs.  In November, the Board is 
scheduled to vote on a consultant design agreement for Stage 1 and review findings from the 
Intake Village site report. 

 

• Heard a presentation on construction and shop services to ensure Metropolitan’s readiness 
and resilience, including an overview of the construction and manufacturing services unit in 
water system operations, as well as ongoing planning and emergency preparedness for 
responding to two simultaneous pipe breaks.  The construction and shop services work in 
close collaboration on the projects.  However, these services are facing challenges as 
demand on their services remains high and staff is limited.  Current vacancy rate is 15 
percent.  In addition, inflationary pressures and contract limits present hurdles to maintain 
and replace equipment.   There is a $25,000 limit for public work and $250,000 limits on 
procuring materials.   Managing the shift to zero emissions vehicles is also an additional 
challenge to ensure resilience.  Board made comments and reminded staff to address any 
staffing issues for the construction and manufacturing services during the next budget cycle. 

 

• Heard updates on engineering services, information technology, and water system 
operations activities.  Of note, a federal judge ruled that water fluoridated at levels typical in 
U.S. poses unreasonable risk of injury to public health.   Metropolitan would coordinate with 
regulators and industry groups to monitor any regulatory responses.  In the past, 
Metropolitan has received funds from American Dental Association for fluoridation to offset 
costs.  Report on the fluoridation ruling was discussed briefly during the legal committee.  
 

• Heard an update on workforce development which highlighted the progress made so far, 
identified additional opportunities through data analysis, and outlined a comprehensive 

059



Metropolitan Water District Board Meeting Report 
Page 3 

 

6359 

workforce development plan aimed at driving ongoing improvement.  The presentation also 
discussed the importance of succession planning.  

 

• Authorized resolutions to support two applications selected to receive United States 
Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART: Water and Energy 
Efficiency Grant Program funding for Fiscal Year 2024 totaling $2 million; and authorized the 
General Manager to accept this funding and enter contracts with the United States 
Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation.  These projects include: 

 
Residential Direct Install Program for Disadvantaged Communities (Reclamation Funding: 
$1,750,000)  
Metropolitan will install water and energy efficient appliances and hardware such as 
showerheads, toilets and irrigation controllers in disadvantaged communities throughout the 
Los Angeles and San Diego regions at no cost to qualified participants in approximately 3,200 
dwellings.  The project is expected to result in annual water savings of 232 acre-feet resulting 
in lower water costs for affected residents.  Water saved will reduce strain on the Lower 
Colorado system.  
 
Residential Direct Install Turf Replacement Program for Disadvantaged Communities 
(Reclamation Funding: $250,000) Metropolitan will convert up to 40 water-intensive 
turfgrass lawns into drought-tolerant alternatives in the greater Los Angeles and San Diego 
areas.  The conversion will be provided at no cost to income-qualified homeowners and 
affordable housing properties in communities more prone to drought and climate change 
impacts.  Each converted landscape will include a stormwater retention feature, an 
authorized plant, and conversion to high-efficiency irrigation systems such as drip irrigation.  
The project is expected to result in annual water savings of six acre-feet and will alleviate 
current stress on the Lower Colorado River Basin.  

 

• Reviewed and considered the Lead Agency’s certified 2022 Final Environmental Impact 
Report for the Chino Basin Program and took related CEQA actions and authorized the 
General Manager to enter into an exchange agreement with Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
to assist in the implementation of the program.  EMWD has been supportive of IEUA’s 
initiative and continues to do so. 

 

• Authorized the General Manager to enter into agreements with Western Canal Water 
District and Richvale Irrigation District for water transfer options and first rights of refusal 
during 2025 through 2027.  Board discussed the water transfer, weighing the costs against 
the reliability benefits of maintaining this option.  Some members noted that SWP 
dependent areas would benefit from this investment in the long term, as it acts as an 
insurance policy during dry years.  There is also strategic benefit of having first rights water. 

 

• Heard a comprehensive presentation on managing risks and ensuring water supply reliability 
in the Bay-Delta and Conveyance from Nina Hawk and Dr. Maureen Martin.  The State Water 

060



Metropolitan Water District Board Meeting Report 
Page 4 

 

6359 

Project (SWP) is a critical part of Metropolitan’s supply portfolio, with its infrastructure 
designed to benefit from deliveries from SWP.  The SWP is essential for surface and 
groundwater storage, water quality, and affordability.  In addition, Recycled water and 
treatment facilities rely on the high-quality water from the SWP.  The presentation outlined 
key risks to the Bay-Delta, including seismic activity, regulatory changes, and climate 
impacts.  Metropolitan is proactively addressing these risks through levee modernization, 
emergency preparedness, the Bay-Delta science program, and ongoing evaluations of 
storage and conveyance solutions. The Delta Conveyance Project (DCP) is now a single tunnel 
project.  Examples of SWP performance with DCP includes higher storage in San Luis 
Reservoir Storage.  According to estimates by Department of Water Resources (DWR), if DCP 
was online there would have been direct deliveries of an additional 300 TAF during drought 
years.  DCP would also provide enhanced reliability in wet and dry conditions.  In 2020, 
Metropolitan Board took action for $160 million which helped DWR continue to fund 
activities up to 2025.  Currently, DWR has requested additional resources for a total of $300 
million for 2026-2027.  The funds would be used for engineering and geotechnical 
investigation.  Metropolitan would pay $141.6 million and other participants would pay the 
remaining $158.4 million.  The final decision would come in 2027.  Within 15 years there is a 
likelihood of a 22 percent decline in supplies from SWP.  Board had a thorough discussion 
following the presentation:  

 

• On climate change board suggested to look at the intersection of wildfire 
impacts and water quality, risks associated with sea-level rise and develop better 
understanding of ecosystem health over the last 30-50 years. Requested the 
staff to include estimates of evaporation due to climate change as Metropolitan 
evaluates surface storage.  

• When can Metropolitan expect with certainty on the level of deliveries from this 
project? 

• Board member inquired which permit applications have been submitted for the 
project in addition how much percentages are being committed by each of the 
other contractors who have committed thus far.  

• Where would Metropolitan share of money come from? bonding or any other 
options from financial standpoint? 

• Board member requested gap analysis in terms of needs and demands.  How 
would Metropolitan take delivers with other projects such after PURE water and 
other local projects come online.  

• What other projects can Metropolitan invest in to make up for the 22 percent 
loss in SWP? 

• During the appeals process if the bonds get approved does Metropolitan get the 
reimbursed? 
 

• Adopted a resolution authorizing the reimbursement of capital expenditures from bond 
proceeds for fiscal years 2024/25 and 2025/26.  This is a standard, non-controversial item 
and a standard practice.  The Metropolitan Board is required to adopt a Reimbursement 

061



Metropolitan Water District Board Meeting Report 
Page 5 

 

6359 

Resolution to be able to reimburse itself for capital expenditures that occur prior to the 
issuance of debt.  This resolution allows for that reimbursement in the future.  Also heard a 
presentation on the background for the reimbursement resolution and its application to the 
current biennium budget period.  In the FY 2024/25 and 2025/26 Biennial Budget, the Board 
approved $630 million of CIP expenditures of which $280 million is allocated to be bond 
funded.  In addition, the Board approved bond funding of $177.9 million for the AVEK High 
Desert Water Program and $48.2 million for the Conservation Program. 
 

• Recommended a project funding in an amount not to exceed $35 million over the next two 
years (Fiscal Years 2024/2025 and 2025/2026), to support the zero-emission vehicle 
transition at Metropolitan and partially mitigate high operational risk.  Subject to Finance & 
Asset Management Committee approval and authorization of specific terms of debt 
issuance.  

 

• Authorized the General Manager to acquire 0.33 acres of property located in Los Angeles 
County in the city of La Verne from Charles J. Arballo and Margaret R. Arballo, as Trustees of 
The Arballo Family Trust, dated December 9, 1991, as amended; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA 
[Conference with real property negotiator; property identified as Los Angeles County 
Assessor’s Parcel No. 8381-005-002; agency negotiator: Seyou Oh; negotiating parties: 
Patrick Arballo and Mark Arballo; under negotiation: price and terms; to be heard in closed 
session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.8]. 

 
 
 
Attachment(s): 
Exhibit A - Hydrology Report 

062



�����������	��
	����������������������
������������������������� !"!#$�%&�'%�� �($)� $*��!+�,!-��� &�.%#$+! &$%/)0���123344456470�859863����

:;< =>?>@ABC�DE;F�GHIJ>K�LMAN�OPNPQRSAQ
TEUU�GHIVT;W;TWD;DFXTE;T�GHIV;YWF;WD;DZXTE[[�GHIV;YWF;WD;DZXDE:Y�GHIVT;W;TWD;DFX ::< =>?>@ABC�FEZD�GHIL>\P�]QSRÂ̂P

�__�7������	���	_̀6 à��b��a7�6�b�c	�1dce	9�	7��8�90�af	5

gh=� D;DF i gQC�j>̂̂�ikKABA>̂�Jlm�>̂̂S@>BASK�AN�T;<�n>ôP�HpHq� D;DZ i Z�>BrSN?sPQA@�QARPQN�QP>@s�BsP�lPNB�=S>NBitAusPNB�T;vw>C�?QP@A?AB>BASK�BSB>̂N�SRPQ�qSQBsPQK�JAPQQ>Ihx� D;DZ i Jlm�>̂̂S@>BASK�AK@QP>NPN�BS�T:<GHO� D;DZ i ZF�>BrSN?sPQA@�QARPQN�QP>@sPw�=>̂AjSQKA>�jQSr�]@B�BS�G>Q�ySK̂C�D�NBQSKuiJlm�>̂̂S@>BASK�AK@QP>NPN�BS�F;<HmO� D;DZ i hKw>KuPQPw�jANs�Ar?>@BPw�Jlm�Pz?SQBN�AK�N?QAKu�iJlm�>̂̂S@>BASK�AK@QP>NPN�BS�Z;<H{|� D;DZ i DKw}PBBPNB�HMu�>B�[�JB>BASK�NAK@P�D;;Z]=n� D;DZ i IANs�~�lÂŵAjP�>??QSRPw�>rPKwrPKB�BS�SjjvQ>r?��D�QP�MAQPrPKB�jSQ�]@B�D;DZ
VG>?X�gP?>QBMQP�jQSr�KSQr>̂�BPr?PQ>BMQPV]@B�D;DF�yJP?�D;DZX VG>?X�<�Sj�KSQr>̂�?QP@A?AB>BASK�V]@B�D;DF�yJP?�D;DZX

T;T<H?QÂ�T��D;DZJSMBsPQK�JAPQQ>�mP>\TDF<qSQBsPQK�JAPQQ>H?QÂ�T��D;DZ[:<:�JB>BASKFFET�AK
YT<[�JB>BASKZ[ED�AK

D:<:;<�;<[;<
Y;<T;;<TT;<TD;<TF;<T:;<T�:<

; �TIvTIvDI �DI�FI �ZI

����	����	����8e	9�

YE�UEZT;E[DZET����������������������������������������D;D;vD;DTD;TYvD;D; D;DDvD;DF����������  �¡¢£¢£��¤�¥¦¥����D;DTvD;DD §̈§©ª§̈§« FE;TE[FEDTFE[¬�¬ ������®����̄�°°�±�������������D;DDvD;DFD;D;vD;DTD;TYvD;D;����������  �¡¢£¢£��¤²¦ ����D;DTvD;DD§̈§©ª§̈§«³d	1�̀8a1́��6�̀_�6µ	��	̀�����6470�85986063



��������		
�������������	������������������������������� ���!�"�#������$���!�����%�&''()*++,,,-.,/&01-21.+����
345� 6768 9 3:;�<=>>�9?@AB�CD>>DEF�=G:HI<HHJ�KJE:HL�DF�MENH>>�=FL�OH=L�PK=CH�=K�O=;�676?QRS� 676T 9 M:HGDUDJ=JDEF�=K�:=DF�=FL�KFEN�=VEWH�FE:C=>�<E:�JXH�<D:KJ�JDCH�JXDK�N=JH:�;H=:ORY� 676T 9 ZHG:HJ=:;�E<�[FJH:DE:�KD\FHL�JXH�]HGE:L�E<�3HGDKDEF�<E:�JXH�5E>E:=LE�]DWH:�[FJH:DC�̂_DLH>DFHK�GEWH:DF\�6768I676̀9]HG>=C=JDEFDFLDG=JHK�G:H=JDEF�E<�?A?aCD>>DEF�=G:HI<HHJ�E<�:HKH:WED:�U:EJHGJDEF�WE>_CH�DF�6768Rb̂� 676T 9 cHWH>�?�KXE:J=\H�<E:�R:DdEF=e�SHW=L=�=FL�OHfDGE�KHJ�<E:�G=>HFL=:�;H=:�676B9[CUH:D=>�[::D\=JDEF�3DKJ:DGJ�DCU>HCHFJHL�=�FHN�3H<DGDJ�[::D\=JDEF�M:E\:=C�JE�GEFKH:WH�=LLDJDEF=>�N=JH:�<E:�K;KJHC�GEFKH:W=JDEF�DF�5=>D<E:FD=

gO=Uh�3HU=:J_:H�<:EC�FE:C=>�JHCUH:=J_:HgiGJ�6768�PZHU�676Th gO=Uh�j�E<�FE:C=>�U:HGDUDJ=JDEF�giGJ�6768�PZHU�676Th 6BjB7j@7ja7j
k7j?77j??7j?67j?87j?B7j?@Bj

7 l?mI?m l6m

�1n1op/1��qrso

BAaB8AB6À7k?8ATtuvw x yw yx
	1,snn��zos{|np's/��z}n1,��~����6767I676?67?kI67676766I6768RWH:=\H�g?kk?I6767h�PkÀ�ORm676?I6766�v����v��

��� 5=U=GDJ;�6̀A?�ORmc=�H�OH=LaAk�ORmg?7�7?�6768haA@�ORmg7k�87�676TkA?�ORmg7k�87�676Th ��� 5=U=GDJ;�6TA8�ORmc=�H�MENH>>aAa�ORmg?7�7?�6768h

��������������������������� ���������������� ���

�v�¡�v�¢�v�£¤�v�t¤�v�¥¤Z_:U>_K�������������������g=VEWH�?e?TB�<Jh 7j 7j 7j 7j 8jSE:C=>�YH=:���������������gVHJNHHF�?e7@B�=FL�?e?TB�<Jh 7j @j ?@j 67j 68j?KJ�cHWH>����������������gVHJNHHF�?e7B7�=FL�?e7@B�<Jh ?77j k8j B@j B8j B7j6FL�cHWH>�������������gVHJNHHF�?e76B�=FL�?e7B7�<Jh 7j 7j 6@j ?8j ?8j8:L�cHWH>������������������gVH>EN�?e76B�<Jh 7j 7j 7j ?8j ?7j¦§̈©ª«¬


p®s��sp/�̄(sop'qz{��1z/q'q1zgR_\_KJ�676T�5]OZZ�4ZM�M:E°HGJDEFKh

�op(±�(��p'so��spo�0²0³±0²0́

µ��spo)�¶s·1z/�0²0̧�p))|.s�21z'qz|p'q1z�1}�0²²¹��z'soq.�º|q/snqzs)�nn�/p'p�pos�(osnq.qzpo·�pz/�.p·�¶s�)|¶»s2's/�'1�2&pz{s-¼|s)'q1z)½��.pqn�.}soosqopp'�.,/&01-21.064



10/22/2024

1

Fallbrook Public Utility District
Engineering and Operations

Board Meeting OCT 2024

Total CIP FY25

2

065



10/22/2024

2

Wastewater Treatment

•Wastewater System Violations

•Reclamation Plant PMs Completed

• Energy Cost per MG

•Cost per Unit of Water Treated

•Recycled Water – Time Out of Service

3

Reclamation Plant Recycled Water

Wastewater Treatment System 
Regulatory Compliance

4

Analyses 
performed: 
Daily
Monthly 
Quarterly 
Semi-annually 
Annually

SRWQCB 
Compliance:
NPDES
WDR

066



10/22/2024

3

Reclamation Plant – Wastewater PMs

5

Reclamation Plant –
Energy Usage (KWh/MG Treated)

Formula =
Total Plant Energy Demand

MG Treated Flow

6

067



10/22/2024

4

Recycled Water – Time Out of Service (Hours)

7

Water Operations

Regulatory Compliance

Preventative Maintenance Work Orders

CUP Deliveries/SMGTP Flows

Unit Water Supply Costs

8

068



10/22/2024

5

Water System Regulatory Compliance 

9Routine Bacteriological Sampling

Water System PMs

10

069



10/22/2024

6

11

SMGTP Flows

2023 2024

Meter Services

Meter Testing

Valve Exercising

12

070



10/22/2024

7

Meter Testing by Month

13

Main Line Valve Exercise Program

14

• Improve reliability

• Reduce impact of 
planned and 
emergency shutdowns

• Total valves exercised 
FY24: 2,060

071



10/22/2024

8

Wastewater 
Collections

Total Wastewater Spilled

Non-Recovered Wastewater Spilled

Odor Complaints

15

Wastewater Collections - Sewer Overflows

16*Private lateral spill, 31 gal, 100% recovery

*

072



10/22/2024

9

Wastewater Collections - Wastewater Spilled

17

Reclamation Plant & Wastewater Collections
Odor Complaints

18* Not FPUD-related, storm drain issue

*

073



10/22/2024

10

Wastewater - Collections PMs

19

Wastewater - Collections Flushing 1,000 LF

20

074



10/22/2024

11

Wastewater - Collections CCTV 1,000 LF

21

22

Construction/Maintenance
• Efforts continue in replacing valves with the greatest impact on water loss and 

customer outages during large main breaks. 

• With new valves, crews will be capable of shutting down smaller controlled areas 
faster, impacting fewer customers while losing less water and completing repairs 
sooner.

• Our goal is to replace 100 valves per year. FY24, 101 valves were replaced by in-
house field crews and 63 by pipeline contractors. We currently have 6,804 valves in 
the system with 423 known to be broken.

• We have a goal to perform maintenance on 3,000 linear feet of easement roads. In 
FY24 we completed 7,794 linear feet. 

075



10/22/2024

12

Main Line Valves Replaced by FPUD Crew

23

Rolling Total Broken Valves

24*FY22 does not include Leak By or Poor Turn Counts

*

076



10/22/2024

13

Planned Outages > 4 Hours
Customers Affected by Month

25

Emergency Outages > 4 Hours
Customers Affected by Month

26

077



Page 1 of 2 

M E M O 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: David Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
DATE: October 28, 2024 
SUBJECT: Financial Summary Report – September 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
Provide an overview of changes in the District’s financial position. 
 
Summary 
 
The graph below shows the District’s year-to-date Revenues, Expenditures and Net 
revenues. 
   

 
 
Revenues and expenditures are in-line with the budget. Since this is early in the fiscal 
year, only limited conclusions can be drawn at this time. Staff are carefully tracking the 
District’s financial position to identify any budget shortfalls early.     
 
The graph below shows the District’s bank holdings reported in the Treasurer’s Report at 
the end of the current and prior month. 
 

078



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
Overall the District’s financial holdings increased slightly this month. Overall the Long-
term Portfolio and PARS investments continue to perform in line with the capital markets.  
The District continues to actively manage its funds and is prepared to make the 
Detachment Fee in March.   
 
Recommended Action 
 
This item is for discussion only.  No action is required. 

079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



091



092



093



Page 1 of 2 

M E M O 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: David Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
DATE: October 28, 2024 
SUBJECT: Budget Status Report for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
Provide a Budget Status Report (BSR) to the Board. 
 
Summary 
 
The BSR shows the District’s financial performance compared to the amended budget for 
the month of September, Year-to-Date and the annual budgeted amount.  This is the first 
reporting period for the new fiscal year.       
 
Total revenues are 0.8% under budget due to lower than budget operating revenues.  
Since this is early in the new fiscal year, no trends can be concluded from this limited 
amount of data.  As the year progresses, the revenues are expected to trend to the 
Budgeted levels.   
 
Non-operating revenues are over budget due largely to higher than Budget Investment 
Earnings, Facility Rents and Other Non-Operating revenues.  As the year progresses, 
Non-Operating Revenues are expected to trend towards the Budget.   
 
The District’s year-to-date total expenditures are 1.8% over Budget largely due to 
purchased water expenditures.  The higher purchased water expenditures is being driven 
by recent reductions in Camp Pendleton water deliveries due to operational issues on the 
base.  The District’s operating costs, excluding purchased water expenditures and the 
Community Benefit Program, are under Budget but expected to trend towards Budget as 
the year progresses and available local water supply increases.                 
 
Total revenue is $11,197,270 or 0.8% under budget and total expenditures are 
$8,042,607 or 1.4% under the Budget.  PAYGO CIP expenditures are over budget for the 
year-to-date.  It should be noted that this will change as Bond proceeds are available for 
drawn down to fund the District’s Water CIP.  After adjusting for the PAYGO expenditures 
year-to-date net revenues are slightly under Budget.   
 
Recommended Action 
 
This item is for discussion only.  No action is required.   

094



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

095



Monthly Budget Report for September Favorable Variance Shown as a positive number

Actual Budget Actual Budget Variance % Budget Remaining Balance %
Operating Revenues: Year remaining 75.0%

Water Sales (1) 1,905,322       1,934,957         5,482,031          5,617,402               (135,371)          -2.4% 17,022,775             11,540,744              67.8%
Water Meter Service Charges 701,902          721,960            2,103,087          2,165,879               (62,792)            -2.9% 8,813,396               6,710,309                76.1%
Wastewater Service Charges 617,425          635,336            1,852,466          1,906,008               (53,543)            -2.8% 7,480,829               5,628,364                75.2%
Recycled Water Revenues 173,656          159,736            505,891             482,546                  23,344             4.8% 1,332,131               826,241                   62.0%
Other Operating Revenue -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA -                          -                           NA
    Total Operating Revenue 3,398,306       3,451,990         9,943,474          10,171,836             (228,362)          -2.2% 34,649,132             24,705,658              71.3%

Non Operating Revenues:
Water Capital Improvement Charge 152,099          151,695            456,297             455,086                  1,211               0.3% 1,820,346               1,364,048                74.9%
Wastewater Capital Improvement Charge 113,318          116,217            339,942             348,652                  (8,710)              -2.5% 1,394,608               1,054,666                75.6%
Property Taxes 16,548            18,624              62,710               55,747                    6,963               12.5% 2,710,462               2,647,751                97.7%
Water Standby/Availability Charge -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA 200,000                  200,000                   100.0%
Water/Wastewater Capacity Charges -                 10,850              10,679               32,549                    (21,870)            -67.2% 130,196                  119,517                   91.8%
Portfolio Interest 146,941          50,069              275,759             150,207                  125,553           83.6% 600,827                  325,068                   54.1%
Federal Interest Rate Subsidy -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA 55,178                    55,178                     100.0%
Grant Funds -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA 240,000                  240,000                   100.0%
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Asset -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA -                          -                           NA
Facility Rents 16,989            19,714              69,916               59,141                    10,775             18.2% 236,565                  166,649                   70.4%
Fire Hydrant Service Fees -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA -                          -                           NA
Other Non-Operating Revenues 15,444            6,250                38,492               18,750                    19,742             105.3% 75,000                    36,508                     48.7%
    Total Non Operating Revenues 461,339          373,419            1,253,796          1,120,133               133,663           11.9% 7,463,181               6,209,385                83.2%

    Total Revenues 3,859,645       3,825,409         11,197,270        11,291,969             (94,698)            -0.8% 42,112,313             30,915,043              73.4%

Expenditures

Purchased Water Expense (2) 692,993          389,096            1,683,238          1,299,874               (383,364)          -29.5% 3,433,211               1,749,973                51.0%

Water Services 464,503          579,958            1,657,405          1,867,571               210,166           11.3% 7,648,968               5,991,563                78.3%

Wastewater Services 209,624          293,495            786,569             945,107                  158,538           16.8% 3,870,852               3,084,284                79.7%

Recycled Water Services 18,825            46,491              88,175               149,710                  61,535             41.1% 613,163                  524,988                   85.6%

Administrative Services 680,420          662,183            2,193,897          2,132,352               (61,545)            -2.9% 8,733,428               6,539,531                74.9%
Community Benefit Program 332                41,399              1,557                 133,311                  131,754           98.8% 546,000                  544,443                   99.7%
    Total Operating Expenses 2,066,696       2,012,621         6,410,841          6,527,924               117,084           1.8% 24,845,623             18,434,782              74.2%

Debt Service & Extraordinary Expenses
SMRCUP SRF -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA 2,814,795               2,814,795                100.0%
Red Mountain SRF -                 -                    197,925             197,925                  -                   0.0% 395,851                  197,925                   50.0%
W Rev Bonds -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA 675,782                  675,782                   100.0%
WW Rev Refunding Bonds 1,433,841       1,433,841         1,433,841          1,433,841               -                   0.0% 1,733,575               299,734                   17.3%
QECB Solar Debt -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA 521,362                  521,362                   100.0%
Total Debt Service 1,433,841       1,433,841         1,631,766          1,631,766               -                   0.0% 6,141,364               4,509,598                73.4%

Total Expenses 3,500,537       3,446,462         8,042,607          8,159,691               117,084           1.4% 30,986,987             22,944,380              74.0%

359,108          378,947            3,154,663          3,132,278               22,385             0.7% 11,125,326             7,970,663                71.6%
Capital Investment

Capital Investment (3)

Construction Expenditures-Admin 82,056            83,667              310,232             100,750                  (209,482)          -207.9% 582,000                  271,768                   46.7%
Construction Expenditures-Water 811,208          563,667            1,637,092          1,622,000               (15,092)            -0.9% 8,508,750               6,871,658                80.8%
Construction Expenditures-Recycled -                 -                    -                     -                          -                   NA 124,000                  124,000                   100.0%
Construction Expenditures-Wastewater 436,324          58,167              526,244             562,500                  36,256             6.4% 2,511,250               1,985,006                79.0%
Construction Expenditures-PAYGO TOTAL 1,329,589       705,500            2,473,569          2,285,250               (188,319)          -8.2% 11,726,000             9,252,431                78.9%

Capital Expenditures Funded by Water Bond Proceeds -                 -                    (1,060,582)         (1,060,582)              -                   0.0% (1,060,582)              -                           0.0%
Net Revenue/(Loss) (970,481)        (326,553)           1,741,676          1,907,610               (165,934)          -8.7% 459,908                  1,281,768                -278.7%

(1) Includes Local Resource Credit of $234,362
(2) RTS and Capacity fees have not been finalized
(3) Detailed CIP Summary Table attached

Year-To-Date Annual Budget

Net Revenue/(loss) From Operations and Debt Service

Current Month

096



CIP Summary Table

Water Capital Projects
Pipelines and Valve Replacement Projects by District 630,000$               221,571$                438,220$               
Pipeline Replacement Projects by Contractors 4,725,000$            470,987$                813,351$               
Deluz ID Projects 100,000$               1,270$                    47,937$                  
Pump Stations 1,250,000$            68,584$                  248,982$               
Meter Replacement -$                        -$                         -$                        
Pressure Reducing Stations 250,000$               3,677$                    11,994$                  
Red Mountain Reservoir Improvements 90,000$                  -$                         -$                        
Steel Reservoir Improvements 840,000$               11,807$                  18,278$                  
Treatment Plant R&R 310,000$               -$                         4,909$                    
SCADA Upgrades/ Security/Telemetry 150,000$               6,189$                    26,299$                  
Vehicles and Heavy Equipment 163,750$               27,123$                  27,123$                  

Total  Water Capital Projects  8,508,750$            811,208$                1,637,092$            

Recycled Water Capital Projects
Recycled Water Improvements 124,000$               -$                         -$                        

Wastewater Capital Projects
WRP Improvements 1,280,000$            2,113$                    59,506$                  
Collection System Improvements 690,000$               36,416$                  43,106$                  
Outfall Improvements 50,000$                  2,783$                    28,619$                  
Vehicles and Heavy Equipment 491,250$               395,013$                395,013$               

Total Wastewater Capital Projects 2,511,250$            436,324$                526,244$               

Administrative Capital Projects
Administrative Upgrades 180,000$               9,632$                    31,528$                  
Engineering and Operations Information Systems -$                        -$                         -$                        
Facility Improvements/Upgrades/Security 65,000$                  9,537$                    15,417$                  
District Yard Improvements 312,000$               62,887$                  263,287$               

Total Administrative Capital Projects 557,000$               82,056$                  310,232$               

 Capital Projects Total  11,701,000$          1,329,589$             2,473,569$            

FY25 PAYGO CIP Summary Table

 Annual 
Budget 

 September 
Expenditures  Year-to-Date 

097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111


	2024-10-28 - Agenda
	A - New Employee Announcement
	B - Approval of Minutes
	C - Pipeline & Valve Replacement – Contractor Prequalification Program
	D - Board Consideration of Recommendations by the Community Benefit Program Committee
	E - Request to Reschedule the December 2, 2024 combined November / December Regular Board Meeting to December 9, 2024
	F - Award of Rattlesnake Tank Site Improvement Project
	G - Amendment of Administrative Code Section 5 – Purchasing Procedures 
	H - Request for Temporary Sewer Service Agreement for APN 123-010-64
	I - Lake Skinner Hydrology Study 
	J - Consider Letter of Support to San Diego County Board of Supervisors to Appoint Don McDougal, or another Subdistrict 4 registered voter/ resident,  to the FPUD Board of Directors, Subdistrict 4 
	K - Request for Board approval for completion of Acquisition of the Fallbrook 3 Flow Control Facility from the San Diego County Water Authority 
	Reports
	EMWD/MWD Report
	Engineering & Operations Report
	Financial Summary Report
	Treasurer's Report
	Budget Status Report
	Warrant List
	Directors Report of Meetings Attended


